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Suite 5105
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Hong Kong
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

IN THE PRC:
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Bank of Communications
Agricultural Bank of China

Hua Xia Bank

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website: www.hlkg.net
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Corporate Development Milestone A T2 R B

2002 April: First property develo nt project. Commenced construction for Harbor City
4 H - BEYEMEIER o) f8 T

May: First move into property leasing business. Acquired 88.95% equity in Hong Long
Commercial
2003 B E s D P R
September: Completed construction for Harbor City
BHK T

2004 September: First move beyond Shenzhen. Acquired 51% equity in Huizhou Yintaida
9 A : BREEERY - iR i 51 % AR HE

February: Commenced construction for Hong Long Plaza

2R BEESHT

March: Acquired 85.71% equity in Yinghua
2005 3 A WEBEEESE.71% Mk

June: Commenced construction for Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park

67 BIEEERESRETER

April: Acquired further 4.68% equity in Hong Long Commercial
47 E—TWIBIREREETE4.68% g
May: Completed the acquisition of 134 shops in Baorun Ornament Materials Mall

2006 58 : ERUIEE R 134 I A
November: Disposal of Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park

BRI R
Decemb rand opening of Hong Long Plaza shopping mall
12 A ; HE=E

February: First move into international capital market. Listed on the HK Stock Exchange and raised net proceeds of
approximately RMB466 million (approximately HK$472 million)
28 BIREE EARNIG o LB BH M =< # 466,000,000 7T #472,000,0007T)

March: Acquired the remaining 6.37% equity interest in Hong Long Commercial and become the indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
¢ [ES 6.37% %
Aprl\ Acquired Yifeng Plaza Shenzhen
BRI %
June Acquired 50% interest in Nam Fong Garden, Guangzhou and subsequently sold in November
- W M F 5 TEE 50 % 211 AHE
2007 July Acquired 100% interest in Glace Garden
e TEE 100% #Ees
September' First fund raising exercise after listing. Issue of Senior Note and raised net proceeds of approximately
RMB645 million (approximately US$86 m\ll\on)
9R : LMBRBEAREEEE - HTELERRLE ; R 645,000,000 7T 6,000,00037T)
October Completed the acqu tion of remalm’ng 49% equity in Huizhou Yintaida
108 : % BE R
November: First move beyond Guan d Acquired 100% interest in Xiang Jiang City, Zhangjiakou, Hebei
1A BREHER - WEmdbRkEx D 100% HEzs
December: Commenced construction for Ningjiang Uptown in Xingning
Tk

February: Approval obtained for acquiring additional gross floor area (“GFA") of approximately 5,719 square meters (“m?”)

in Yifeng Plaza.
LETEA) 5, 7193?,

2008

2009 March: Entered into agreement for disposing 18% equity interest in Huizhou Yintaida.
BEBHLER = RIE
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Business Scope A A% 152R 18

The company's corporate and business structure as of 31 December 2008 M2008F 12 A31H  AAFIMDEREBLE
was as follows: BT

B EE 2 R
HONG LONG

Holdings
Corporate and business structure
EREBEE
Lehman Brothers Founders and directors Z‘ﬂﬁ.gﬁ?‘fﬂgﬁsﬂf:f&ﬁ;
Holdings Inc. AARES AR (EAHERAAREE)
| 5.83% 57.22% | 36.95%
Hong Long Holdings Limited
BEZERERAR
Shenzhen/Dongguan Huizhou Meizhou/Xingning Hebei, Zhangjiakou
FI RS =M MM / FEE SAdERR A

Projects under development/to be developed (planned GFA about 1,497,775 m’)
HERRESHEREE (GFEAREEEN 1,497,775 F 5 K)

Hong Long | Urban Upstream ' y " .
Century Plaza 89,606 Landscape Villa, Phase 1 | 160,078 Grz;;(;sgl en i33,275 Xlanﬁg ;J?:aﬁngECIty i
Urban Upstream Ningjiang Uptown, .
57,950 Landscape Villa, Phase 2 | 386,720 Phase 1 98,782

Zirui Garden Urban Upstream

" Bauhinia Garden
P 153,589 Landfcapfa Villa, Phase 3 |315,033 P 85,000

Yinghua Project

|

Projects under negotiation (planned GFA about 821,354 m?)
BEEPIER (FrER 2 EmEL 821,354 £ 5 K)

Old City Renovation Ningjiang Uptown,
on Guangchang 9,759 Phase 2 631,715
North Street BITHIHEE 2 8
[ B 1B m s

Project
RERBER

Dongguan Qiaotou
119,880

Property leasing (total leasable GFA about 88,636 m?)
VB E (AIHEERZEMmMBEL 88,636 FFHK)
Harbor City

R 14,959

Baorun Ornament Materials Mall
BB S AR A 5164

(1) After the deduction of the GFA sold in 2007 and 2008
BB 2007 F [ 2008 1 & 2 B EEEE

Hong Long Holdings Limited JE[#=R AR A 7
Annual Report 2008 —Z & )\ FF R




Properties Portfolio Overview ¥J¥ 4 &l E

LiST OF PROPERTIES

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
COMPLETED PROJECTS

Interest

Site area Actual GFA (square meters) Soldarea  Commencement/ attributable

Project name Place (square meters)  Residential Shop Office Others" Total (square meters)  completion date to the group

Harbor City Shenzhen 19,822 61,252 14,959 - 19,366 95,577 75901  2002/Q2-2003/Q3 100%

Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 19,832 72,035 64,397 - 36,198 172,630 136,250  2005/Q1-2006/Q4 100%

Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park Shenzhen 119,326 - - - 237,939 237,939 237,939 2005/Q2-2006/Q4 100%
158,980 133,287 79,356 - 293,503 506,146 450,090

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/TO BE DEVELOPED

Site area Planned GFA (square meters) Saleablearea  commencement/ attributable
Project name Place (square meters)  Residential Shop Office Others'" Total (square meters)  completion date  to the group
Hong Long Century Plaza Shenzhen N/A 12,99 12,293 53,805 10512 89,606 79,004 2008/02-2009/Q4 100%
Yinghua Shenzhen 9,237 48,180 6,980 - 2,790 57,950 55,160  2010/Q4-2011/Q4 85.71%
Zirui Garden Shenzhen 43,538 90,199 5,934 - 57,456 153,589 96,133 2008/Q1-2011/Q4 100%
Urban Upstream Landscape Villa (Phase 1) Huizhou 120,580 114,542 11,913 - 33,623 160,078 126,455  2007/Q2-2009/Q4 100%"2
Urban Upstream Landscape Villa (Phase 2) Huizhou 301,843 303,397 28,000 - 55,323 386,720 331,397 2009/Q4-2011/Q4 100%
Urban Upstream Landscape Villa (Phase 3) Huizhou 77,519 240,870 14,406 - 59,757 315,033 255,276 2011/Q4-2013/Q4 100%"2
Grace Garden Meizhou 5,570 30,795 1,500 = 980 33,275 32,295  2007/Q4-2009/Q4 100%
Ningjiang Uptown Phase 1 Xingning 38,827 86,232 7,025 - 5,525 98,782 93,267 2007/03-2010/Q4 100%
Bauhinia Garden Xingning 28,526 75,500 8,500 - 1,000 85,000 84,000  2010/Q1-2011/Q4 100%
Xiang Jiang City Zhangjiakou 152,603 158,889 9,661 40,000 4,780 213,330 208550  2007/03-2010/Q4 100%

778243 1,161,600 106,212 93,805 231,746 1,593,363 1,361,617

PROJECTS UNDER NEGOTIATION

Site area Planned GFA (square meters) Saleablearea  commencement/  attributable
Project name Place (square meters)  Residential Shop Office Others" Total (square meters)  completion date to the group
Ningjiang Uptown Phase 2 Xingning 243,455 538,542 63,173 - 30,000 631,715 601,715 2011/Q4-2013/Q4 100%
0ld city renovation on
Guangchang North Street Shenzhen 10,636 29,759 20,000 - 20,000 69,759 49,759 2009/04-2011/Q4 100%
Dongguan Qiaotou Dongguan 47,952 95,904 23,976 = = 119,880 119,880  2009/Q4-2011/Q4 90%
302,043 664,205 107,149 - 50,000 821,354 771,354

PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS

Project name Place

Harbor City Shenzhen
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen
Baorun Ornament Materials Mall Shenzhen

PROPERTY FOR OWN USE

Project name Place
8/F, Hong Long Building Shenzhen
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces.

100% owned
by the group

Leaseable area
(square meters)

3,136
58,5613
7,653

69,302

100% owned
by the group

Useable area
(square meters)

748

(2) In March 2009, entered into agreement for disposing 18% equity interest to independent third parties.
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Properties Portfolio Overview ¥J¥ A Sl &

EERBER
BEXERIER
1A EREEER(THK) BHERR 51/ 58
BE%H e (FA%) fz it By Hfpo fit (FA%) B IER FifEs
REED I 19,822 61,262 14,959 = 19,366 95,577 75,901 2002/Q2-2003/03 100%
BEES el 19,832 72,035 64,397 = 36,198 172,630 136,250 2005/Q1-2006/Q4 100%
RERMAIRE 2l 119,326 - - - BTy 237,9%9 237939 2005/02-2006/04 100%
168,980 133,287 79,356 = 293,503 506,146 450,090
ER% SFRRIER
AR REUREEE (THX) THERR REHT/ S
BE &R W (F7%) fz (k] B7E Hfgo &t (F7%) B IER Fifs
Rt EES il TER 12,996 12,93 53,805 10,512 89,606 79,094 2008/Q2-2009/Q4 100%
HERE il 9,037 48,180 6,980 = 2,790 57,950 55,160 2010/04-2011/Q4 85.71%
LR I 43,538 90,199 5,934 = 57,456 163,589 96,133 2008/Q1-2011/Q4 100%
RTINS BN 120,580 114,542 11,913 = 33,623 160,078 126,455 2007/Q2-2009/Q4 100%@
BRI L0 301,843 303,397 28,000 - 55,323 386,720 331,397 2009/Q4-2011/04 100%
BTN M 77,519 240,870 14,406 = 59,757 315,033 256,276 2011/Q4-2013/04 100%@
BEE i 5,570 30,795 1,500 = 980 33,275 32,295 2007/Q4-2009/Q4 100%
ETHA 8 HE 38,827 86,232 7,025 = 5,625 98,782 93,257 2007/Q3-2010/04 100%
7R BE 28,526 75,500 8,500 = 1,000 85,000 84,000  2010/Q1-2011/Q4 100%
BLAH Fx0 162,603 158,889 9,661 40,000 4,780 213,330 208550  2007/Q3-2010/04 100%
778243 1,161,600 106,212 93,805 231746 1,593,363 1,361,617
ER#EE
1iER RUREEE(THK) THERR REHT/ 3]
EEER e (E5%) fz (k] B7R el fit (F7%) B IER Fif s
B2 = 243,455 538,542 63,173 = 30,000 631,715 601,715 2011/04-2013/04 100%
BAIENBE R 10,636 29,759 20,000 = 20,000 69,759 49759 2009/Q4-2011/Q4 100%
RERHEEE 2 47,952 95,904 23,976 = = 119,880 119,880 2009/04-2011/Q4 90%
302,043 664,206 107,149 = 50,000 821,354 771,354
LIEZEN—€ 33
AEEG
100% &=
A A
HEER it 26 (F7K)
EEEE Sl 3,136
TBIZES ] 58,513
=R EE B R sl 7,653
69,302
B R
AEEG
100% &z
A AEE
BEHER i 25 (F7HK)
BERESE w 748

(1) BEREHNEEN
(2) 720094 3 AEREMBILE 3 HE18% s
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Group Financial Summary BB E

RESULTS ey
For the year ended 31 December
HE12A318LFE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Turnover e 119,628 411,677 521,040 148,541 197,745
Net increase in fair value of KEMENARE
investment properties BYIE INFRE 62,120 180,352 566,343 7,250 760
Profit from operations iyl 122,290 486,196 927,783 79,471 55,254
Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $T4 £ R T AR
financial instruments NAERE
FEE 58,533 (28,182) 432 = =
Finance costs REE A (90,227) (55,091) (23,170) (361) (2,197)
Profit before taxation FR A5 AT Vg A 90,596 402,923 905,045 79,110 53,057
Income tax FriS it (87,236) (152,421)  (206,779) (14,814) (12,858)
Profit for the year NEE R 3,360 250,502 698,266 64,296 40,199
Profit attributable to equity iN/NSIF s F il
shareholders of the company i =pingl 3,546 250,685 698,969 63,531 40,160
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EE -~ AERD B E R
At 31 December
®12A31H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETRT ARETT
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,368,908 1,282,002 1,010,645 231,540 107,223
Current assets MENEE 2,455,402 2,250,053 738,829 594,312 299,780
Current liabilities mEATLE (1,255,575)  (822,079)  (818,239)  (576,893)  (334,911)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (908,932) (1,070,250) (86,812)  (101,861) (2,062)
Minority interests DB R M A (13,082) (12,268) (23,091) (24,694) (11,157)
Equity attributable to equity R RIRERARER
shareholders of the company FEEER 1,646,721 1,627,458 821,332 122,404 58,873
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Chairman’s Statement &%

The group’s results for the financial year ended 31 December 2008 (“2008
Results”) showed a substantial decline as compared to that for the year
2007, mainly due to:

1. the current volatile global financial market and economic slowdown
as well as the macro-economic control policy adopted by the PRC
Government on the real estate industry, which posted an adverse
impact on the property market in the PRC. The revenue of the group
declined substantially and the progress of development of various
projects, in particular, Hong Long Century Plaza (formerly known as
Yifeng Plaza), was slower than expected;

2. the group recorded an one-off gain of RMB140 million as a result
of the disposal of the interests in Trisum Investment Limited (2008:
nil); and

3. the group’s investment properties, mainly including Hong Long

Plaza completed at the end of 2006, recorded appreciation in
fair value of RMB180 million in 2007. Under the depressing
environment of the property market in 2008, the appreciation in
the fair value of the investment properties of the group declined
substantially to RMB62.12million.

The group is taking the following measures to ensure its smooth
operation:

1. adjust the construction and pre-sale plans according to the status of
the market and funding;

2. stringent control of cost, including construction cost and
administrative expenses, while management and human resources

deployment will be further improved; and

3. explore different financing channels actively.

AEBEFHZE2008F12 A31HILFBFENESE
([2008F %48 2007 FFEHEEHEE  HE
BREAR:

1. BARKEBMEEHEREBERE B
MERBEBRFEFEMETERNEE A
THRE - PEEHET S XN
2 REBEZWABETR ZFEBL
HERETLES GIHELES) 2%
HEE IR AR EE -

2. AEEE2007FEELRKEFRAT
MRS MERS — R ERFARE1.418T
(2008%F : &) : &

3. AEERMKREME(EZSE2006FER
THBEEIS) £ 2007 E41E8 A FEZ I
BEARE1.8187T - 2008 FEMEMER
ATERET  AEEREMELFE
ZHEBETHREAREE6,2128T ¢

B EREUA TR AR EERE

1. EMERAESBRARHBREERLHEER
gl

2. BEEHRA BRAERRKARITR

FH - E-PREEERATFLE R

3. HBEBESRIFRMBERE -
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Chairman’s Statement &%

MARKET REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the first half of 2008, the government continued to implement
a series of appropriately tight macro-economic control policies adopted
since 2007 in order to keep housing prices at a reasonable level. From
the end of 2007, demand in the property market declined and housing
transactions dropped as consumers generally expected that the
government would continue to formulate new control policies on the real
estate market and the housing prices would keep decreasing. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics, the GFA of commodity housing sold in
the country was 620 million m?. in 2008, representing a decrease of 19.7%
as compared to 2007. The total amount of transactions in commodity
housing in 2008 was RMB2.4 trillion, representing a decrease of 19.5%
as compared to 2007. In 2008, real estate developers in the PRC were
generally subject to the pressure posed by the decline in both selling prices
and trading volumes.

During the second half of 2008, the sub-prime crisis intensified, causing
the global credit default swap market to break down. In light of the
difficulties to be faced by the manufacturing industry and industrial
exports, the Central Government of the PRC swiftly adjusted relevant
policies and implemented aggressive financial and monetary policies,
such as cutting the benchmark interest rate for one year loans by 2.16%,
and lowering down the reserve requirement ratio several times from the
peak of 17.56%. The Central Government further announced a substantial
economic stimulus plan with an aggregate amount of RMB4 trillion in
November 2008 to increase domestic demand and promote economic
development. Under such policies, it is expected that the PRC maintains
gross domestic product growth in 2009. In addition, as inflation pressure
and concerns over inflation were mitigated, there would be more room
for the Central Government to further lower down the interest rate when
necessary. Notwithstanding that such policies were not designed for
directly supporting the real estate market, cutting loan benchmark interest
rate and reserve requirement ratio was considered to be favourable for
boosting consumers’ confidence in the market. Since the third quarter
of 2008, various local governments began to issue policies that helped
supporting stable development of the real estate market to different
extents. Transaction volumes of the real estate market showed signs of
recovery at the end of 2008, among which, transaction volume of the
fourth quarter of 2008 saw a significant increase comparing with the first
half of 2008. Although the market confidence had not been fully restored
at the end of 2008, the market was basically stable.

2009 will still be a year of risks and opportunities. On one hand, the
negative impact on the global financial market as a result of deleveraging
will continue to influence the PRC’'s export market, which will in turn
inevitably affect the employment market and the gross domestic product
growth of the PRC. On the other hand, central banks of most countries,
including the PRC, had already adopted individual considerable economic
stimulus plans and quantitative loosening policies in an attempt to reverse
such economic contraction within a short period of time.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 381G A A
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MEIENITE 2007 FLARATIREUA — R EE 1L
ZHEBFERE - B2007F KL - HEEL
mIEMRT G EE L ZEHET S FHEBR -
EEBEETH SERZEEEKREREXR
0 KRETKR - BERFTARBEERETS
2008F 2 EMEHEBEAMARAG2ETS
Ko EE2007F TFE19.7% ° 2008 F B ME K
RBFEHAARE2 48187T - ELL2007F I8 &
19.5% ° 2008 F + H B /5 Hb /= 2 78 3 iR M B
EHEERULRR HELETEMES -

2008 TF - KFIRIBEEME - BEE2I(E
FRENEBATEHEE - REPRBFH RS
EMTEHOBEHMEEE  ARAREER
KoERTREEBHNVBREEEEK  EPE
B—FHEREENELETH2.16% « L1
BHREHESRNUBREMI7TE%ERETHA - &
RBIFE2008F 11 AE LML BREAARE
ABEIIHEBERSGEE R RUEAANT - #H)
KOEER o s LBURTEE T - 852009 FH
BB AEEREBESRFIER - WL BRED
REBRNEENBMETE AP RBUTIRE
TEVERE-SPTAMNENTHE BEEL
BREEMEMTIERESIFEEMS - B
MBEERRAL NAEREEFNEMGTREES
KRR MEREEHEMETSHELD
B2008F E=FFES » SHbih H BTRESE
HETREENGKEEHET S FREENK
Ko BHMEMSXHEML2008FEEE L HR
BEIEPR - £ 2008 FEWNFERH 212008
FEYFHBEZLA - REHZ= 2008 FET
BELITATERE  BMBEEAELEBTET
5& °

2009F BN AR EE BN FH—F - —7
- EEERCHEREBTENERTE/E
BEBHPELEOTS  EHEETRLBTE
TERETSMBEALERENER - 5—7
B AZHEERORT BRETE - BERE
THENEBERMCED RMECTREE
BNEEERENTHARERREHNLEER

B o




Chairman’s Statement &%

MARKET REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (ConT’D)

In respect of the domestic real estate market, we expect market
integration in 2009 will provide investment opportunities. Notwithstanding
that the real estate market had been through certain periodic adjustments
in 2008, the improving trend of the market in the fourth quarter of 2008 is
expected to continue in 2009, despite the selling prices will still be lower
than the highest recorded in 2007. We expect the economic stimulus plan
of RMB4 trillion will start to show its positive effect by the second half of
2009. If the PRC’s gross domestic product can maintain a stable growth
during the first half of 2009, consumers’ confidence on the real estate
market will probably be further strengthened.

In 2008, land acquisition activities of most real estate developers declined
and the number of new projects also dropped. Growth in supply for
commodity housing is expected to slow down in the coming few years
and the market will be able to restore to equilibrium not later than 2010.
In the long run, demand for quality housing from the affluent population,
especially the growing middle class, the urbanization and the opening up of
the Chinese society will lead to long-term opportunities for well managed
property developers.

The housing issue and the relevant reform has long been the Central
Government’s priority. In 2008, the government introduced more specific
guidelines for policy housing, including low-rent housing, economically
affordable housing and capped price housing, to improve the welfare
housing system. It is the Central Government's long-term mission to
improve the people’s living conditions. At present, there is concern that
the supply of policy housing will suppress the demand in the commodity
residential property market. The group believes that policy housing is
designed for markets and customers different from the group's target in
commodity housing, which is mainly the middle-class. The introduction
of policy housing will certainly provide more diversity to the residential
property market. The market of low-end commodity housing will gradually
shrink and be replaced by policy housing despite that such transition may
take years to complete. However, following the growth of the middle-
class population and their demand for quality living, the group will continue
to implement “comprehensive quality management”, improve product
quality and enhance after-sales service with a view of building the “Hong
Long” brand.

To conclude, the group remains prudently optimistic regarding its prospect
in 2009 despite of the downward pressure in gross profit margin. The
group will continue to strictly control the development cycles of various
projects and maintain a well-balanced land bank and solid financial
structure. The management is confident in profit making and maintaining
a stable development while positioning well for opportunities under such
a difficult environment in 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement &%

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The group is pleased to assume its social responsibilities and help the
unprivileged and the poor. During the first half of 2008, staff of the group
actively participated in community events to support the relief work as
Sichuan, PRC was hit by a serious earthquake on 12 May. The total amount
raised by the group in various events reached RMB430,000.

STRENGTHENING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The group has been committed to enhancing its corporate management
in an effort to further protect the shareholders’ interests and ensure the
group’s stable development. In light of the volatile global financial market,
both investors and regulatory institutions have raised their requirements
on corporate governance and transparency. In 2008, the group had
adopted risk management measures in order to regularly monitor the
group'’s status on internal control, help assessing various projects and
formulate policies applicable to all projects or individual project.

In 2008, the group had also appointed Mr. Zhang Yiyan and Mr. Wang
Fosong, an academician of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, as deputy
chairman and an independent non-executive director of the Board
respectively.

Awarded by the valuable working experience from Mr. Wang Fosong
and Mr. Zhang Yiyan, the company’s internal management and external
coordination will move toward the sound development.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all shareholders, business partners, local governments,
customers and staff for their unwavering care and support.

ZENG Yunshu
Chairman
24 April 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&{:h & 24T

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue of the group for 2008 was RMB119.6 million, representing
a decrease of RMB292.1 million (or 71%) over 2007.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company for 2008
was RMB3.5 million, representing a decrease of RMB247.2 million
(or 99%) over 2007.

Basic earnings per share for 2008 was RMBO0.34 cents, representing
a decrease of RMB23.85 cents (or 99%) over 2007.

Total assets increased from RMB3.53 billion to RMB3.82 billion.

Leverage (total bank loans and interest-bearing borrowings divided
by total assets) decreased from 33.3% to 31.6%.

In addition to the existing properties under development of
approximately 1,497,775 m? GFA, the group continues to pursuit
further expansion in land reserves of approximately 821,354 m? GFA
and is optimistic about the future prospect.

B e B s A
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&fih & 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW B B¢ ] ER
increase/(decrease)
2008 2007 18/ Cal)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
Mz ARETR ARBFIT ARETRT ERad
Turnover BEE 1
Property development b EEE 64,147 362,933 (298,786) -82%
Property leasing MERE 55,481 48,744 6,737 14%
119,628 411,677 (292,049) -71%
Gross profit EH 1 45,912 234,683 (188,771) -80%
Net increase in fair value of RENMENDAE 2 62,120 180,352 (118,232) -66%
investment properties opdilipessl
Gain on disposal of a jointly & K EEH 3 - 140,765 (140,765) -100%
controlled entity L6
Other net income/(loss) Hinlezs/ (B51R) F98 4 37,097 (24,608) 61,706 >-100%
Other revenue HipA 5 55,491 40,476 15,015 37%
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER 6 (5,226) (11,347) 6,121 -54%
General and administrative expenses —REITHRER 7
- Share option expenses - RBREER (342) (29,352) 29,010 -99%
- others - Hft (31,931) (24,417) (7,514) 31%
Other operating expenses Hih&EiEB A 8
- Share option expenses - RREEH (15,376) (15,376) - 0%
- others - Htl (25,455) (4,980) (20,475) >100%
Net change in fair value of TEERIAARE 9
derivative financial instruments BEE)FE
- convertible note - TRRER - (49,544) 49,5644 -100%
- Senior Note - BARE 58,533 21,362 37,171 >100%
Finance costs BE KA 10
— loan note and convertible note - ERERRATBRBRER - (22,065) 22,065 -100%
~ Senior Note - BERER (89,813) (23,276) (66,537)  >100%
- others - Htl (414) (9,750) 9,336 -96%
Income tax FriSH 11
- enterprises income tax - EMER (16,059) (41,822) 25,763 -62%
— land appreciation tax - THhIBER 661 (98,291) 98,952  >-100%
~ changes in tax rate on - REEHHBME (66,081) - (66,081) N/A
opening deferred tax balances RIS ST L
- deferred tax - BERIE (5,757) (12,308) 6,551 -53%
Profit for the year AREE R 3,360 250,502 (247,142) -99%
14 Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1ER AR A F
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&{:h & 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

Note:

10.

1.

Turnover and gross profit: Turnover comprises of sales proceeds of
properties delivered and property leasing income. There was substantial
drop in revenue, since in 2008 we only delivered approximately 21,731m?
of residential units and 223m?2 of shops in Xiang Jiang City, while in 2007
we delivered approximately 3,743 m? of retail shops in Hong Long Plaza and
approximately 67,678m? of residential units and 5,957m? of shops in Xiang
Jiang City. The average selling prices and thus gross profit of retail shops are
much higher than that of residential units.

Net increase in fair value of investment properties: The substantial
increase in 2007 was due to the completion of Hong Long Plaza in late 2006.

Gain on disposal of a jointly controlled entity: In 2007, the group
disposed a jointly controlled entity and generated a gain of approximately
RMB140,765,000 which there was no such item in 2008.

Other net income/(loss): The profit in 2008 was mainly due to the exchange
gain arising on translation of Senior Note which is denominated in US dollars
upon cancellation of swap agreement.

Other revenue: The increase in 2008 was mainly due to the compensation
income on cancellation of swap agreement related to the Senior Note.

Selling and distribution expenses: The decrease in 2008 was mainly due to
less advertisement incurred for sales of properties.

General and administrative expenses: The decrease in share option
expenses, a non-cash item, was due to less option granted during 2008.
The increase in other general expenses was mainly due to the increase of
manpower required to handle various properties under development.

Other operating expenses: The increase in 2008 was mainly due to provision
of impairment on loans and receivables.

Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: In September
2007, the company issued Senior Note with warrant. The change in fair value,
as assessed by independent valuer, of that component has been recorded as
income or expense in the income statement. In 2007, there was loss arising

on conversion of convertible note into shares of the company.

Finance costs: The increase in 2008 was mainly due to the interest expense
incurred for the Senior Note issued in September 2007.

Income tax: The substantial decrease of enterprise income tax and land
appreciation tax in 2008 was mainly due to less sales of properties and thus
the corresponding profits. The substantial increase of effect of changes in
tax rate on opening deferred tax balances was mainly due to the additional
provision for deferred tax on accumulated increase in fair value of investment

properties due to the increase in applicable tax rates from 15% to 25%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&fih & 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (ConT’D)

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

While principally engaged in the development of mid-ranged residential
and commercial properties in the PRC, the group expects stronger
recurrent cash flow from commercial properties leasing in the future.
In 2008, property development income and property leasing income
accounted for approximately 54% and 46% respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits as at 31 December
2008 amounted to approximately RMB103.9 million (31 December 2007:
RMB573.5 million) which including RMB43.8 million, USD4.7 million, and
HKD31.5 million.

The group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,209.8 million
as at 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: RMB1,175.4 million),
approximately RMB510.1 million was repayable within one year,
RMB699.7 million was repayable more than one year but less than five
years inclusive. Except for the Senior Note, all of the group’s borrowings
carried interest at floating interest rates. The group’s total bank loans and
interest-bearing borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December
2008 was 31.6% (31 December 2007: 33.3%).

As at 31 December 2008, the group had current assets of approximately
RMB2,455.4 million (31 December 2007: RMB2,250.1 million) and current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,255.6 million (31 December 2007:
RMB822.1 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, bank loans of approximately RMB650.1
million were secured by certain bank deposits, investment properties
and properties for future development and under development for sale
of the group of approximately RMB49.8 million, RMB1,212 million and
RMB194.1 million respectively.

SENIOR NOTE

For the details of Senior Note, please refer to note 24(b) to the financial
statement.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1ER AR A F
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&{:h & 24T

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi. Except for the Senior Note, all of the group’s
borrowings are denominated in Renminbi. The group did not engage in
any derivative activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to
hedge its balance sheet exposure as at 31 December 2008.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save for the guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities (at a
maximum of RMB370 million) granted to purchasers of the group’s
properties and the litigation claim of RMB21 million, as details disclosed
in note 35 to the financial statement, the group had no other material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2008.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are
directly related to the underlying business of the group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2008, the group had a staff force of approximately 300
employees. Of this, most were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration
of employees was in line with the market trend and commensurable to
the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration of the group’s employees
includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives (such as pre-IPO
Share Options and Share Option Scheme). Total staff costs incurred for the
year 2008 was approximately RMB18.2 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors (“Board”) does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year 2008 (2007: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&fih & 24T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The group is principally engaged in the development of mid-range
residential and commercial properties as well as commercial properties
leasing in the Guangdong and Hebei, the PRC.

The group expanded its business presence in Guangdong, including
Shenzhen, Huizhou, Meizhou and Xingning. The group has further
expanded beyond Guangdong by acquiring Xiang Jiang City project in
Zhangjiakou of Hebei. The expansion signifies the group’s successful
launch of the projects and confidence in second and third tier cities in the
PRC where there is great demand for better living environment.

For investment properties portfolio, the group’s leasable GFA increased
to approximately 89,000m?, out of which, the group owned approximately
59,000m? Hong Long Plaza following its completion in late 2006. Hong
Long Plaza generates recurring cash inflows supplement to the group’s
future investment plan.

Summary of development and status of existing projects are reported in
the following paragraphs.

Hong Long Century Plaza (formerly known as Yifeng Plaza): In April 2007,
the group acquired approximately 70,000m? GFA in a public auction at
a consideration of approximately RMB482 million. It is a complex of
offices, residential units and retail shops located at the prime location in
Luohu district, Shenzhen. In February 2008, the group obtained approval
to further acquire area of approximately 5,719m? GFA at consideration of
approximately RMB63 million. During 2008, the group further acquired
approximately 2,197m? GFA at consideration of approximately RMB21.2
million. The group has commenced renovation works and expects to
obtain the approval for pre-sales to be launched in July 2009 and to deliver
the units in or around the end of 2009.

Grace Garden: In July 2007, the group acquired 100% equity interest in a
PRC company, which holds a piece of land in Meizhou, at consideration of
RMB11 million. The project, named Grace Garden, consists of 2 residential
blocks and some retail shops of approximately 33,275m? GFA. The group
commenced the pre-sales in June 2008. The group has substantially
completed the construction of the first block and plans to deliver the units
in or around June 2009.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1ER AR A F
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&{:h & 24T

BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

Ningjiang Uptown: In October 2007, the group formed a new wholly-
owned subsidiary in Xingning city for development of a landmark project
named Ningjiang Uptown. The phase 1 is a large scale complex of 9
residential blocks and some retail shops of approximately 98,782m?
GFA. The group commenced the pre-sales in October 2008. The group
is actively pursuing the completion of construction of the first 5 blocks
and plans to deliver the units in or around the end of 2009. In addition,
the group has paid deposits of approximately RMB132.8 million for land
reserve of approximately 243,455m? site area for Ningjiang Uptown phase
2 of approximately 631,715m? GFA in December 2007.

Xiang Jiang City: In November 2007, the group completed the acquisition
of an intermediate holding company, which holds 100% interest in
Xiang Jiang City project in Zhangjiakou of Hebei. It is a residential and
commercial complex of approximately 213,330m? GFA. Xiang Jiang City
is a developing project upon acquisition by the group. The group has
delivered approximately 73,635m? and 21,954m? GFA in 2007 and 2008
respectively and generated revenue of approximately RMB171.7 million
and RMBG64.1 million respectively. Further, the group plans to deliver the
other units under development in or around the end of 2009.

Huizhou Urban Upstream Landscape Villa: The total site area and planned
GFA is 499,942m? and 861,831m? respectively. Out of which, the site area
and planned for phase 1 GFA is 120,580m? and 160,078m? respectively.
The group commenced the pre-sales of phase 1 in October 2008. Due
to the market and economic situations, the group has slowed down the
pace of construction and plans to deliver part of the units of phase 1 in or
around the end of 2009. In March 2009, the group disposed 18% equity
interest in the subsidiary which holds the project. The group believes that
the disposal will provide the funds to finance part of the construction costs
for other properties under development of the group. Taking into account
the benefits of the disposal, the group is of the view that the terms of the
disposal are fair and reasonable and is in the interests of the group and its
shareholders as a whole.

Zirui Garden: In March 2008, the group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party for acquiring 100% equity interest in Shenzhen
City Zirui Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Zirui”)
by phases. Shenzhen Zirui holds the Zirui Garden project in Buji County,
Shenzhen. Zirui Garden consists of premier villa, residential units and retail
shops with planned GFA of approximately 153,589m?. The group plans to
construct and deliver by phases in 2010 to 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&fih & 24T

BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

Bauhinia Garden: In July 2004, the group acquired a land of site area of
28,526m? near the train station of Xingning city for the development of
Bauhinia Garden with planned GFA of approximately 85,000m?. The group
plans to commence the development until 2010.

Yinghua project: In March 2005, the group acquired 85.71% equity interest
in Shenzhen Yinghua Development Company Limited (“Yinghua”) which
holds a land of site area of 9,237m? with planned GFA of 57,950m?. The
group plans to commence the development in late 2010.

Guangchang North Street: In 2007, the group obtained approval from
Luohu district government, Shenzhen, for an old city renovation on
Guangchang North Street ([E#51LE ] EHEE). It is located at the
south of Hongbao Road (4L & %), the west of Heping Road (F1¥#&) and
Dongmen Old Street (88F921), the north of Shennan Road East (FF &
#£) and Shun Hing Plaza (RYI{Z 8 E 5 F AE) and the east of Baoan
Road South (BZ ). It is located in the central commercial district of
Luohu district of Shenzhen. The first phase of the project will occupy site
area and planned GFA of 11,000m? and 70,000m? respectively. The group
is negotiating with the local land planning authorities and expects to obtain
a clear indication on the proceeding in or around the end of 2009.

In October 2007, the group established a wholly-owned subsidiary in
Danshui of Huizhou, namely Huizhou Xing Wo Property Development
Limited (“Xingwo"). Xingwo is considering the redevelopment of a
site located in the landmark of Danshui. The site area is approximately
53,000m? with residential units and retail shops of approximately
425,000m? GFA. Due to the slow down of economic growth and in
particular the expected demand for middle class properties in the local
area, the group decided to suspend the project and shall proceed to
dissolve the company shortly. The group does not consider there is
material effect since it only incurred insignificant operating expenses for
the project.

In March 2008, the group established a 90% owned subsidiary in
Dongguan. The group is considering a residential and commercial complex
of approximately 119,880m? GFA. The group plans to develop the project
by phases in late 2009.
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DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. Zeng Yunshu, aged 55, is the chairman, president, an executive
director and a member of the remuneration committee of the company.
Mr. Zeng is one of the founders of Hong Long Properties (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Hong Long Shenzhen”), the major operating
subsidiary of the group. Mr. Zeng has been serving as the president
of Hong Long Shenzhen since its establishment. He is responsible
for determining the overall business strategies and planning, making
investment decisions and determining the overall business management
direction of the group. Prior to the establishment of the group, Mr. Zeng
worked in the Xingning City and Meizhou municipal governments from
1981 to 1990. Mr. Zeng worked in Shenzhen Petrochemical Industry
(Group) Co. Ltd. from 1991. During the period from March 1993 to
March 2002, Mr. Zeng was a director of Shenzhen Cairun Properties
Development Company Limited, a PRC limited company engaged in the
businesses of trading and property development. In September 2000,
Mr. Zeng established Hong Long Shenzhen. Currently, he is a committee
member of the People’s Political Consultative Committee of Meizhou,
Guangdong Province and the deputy president of Meizhou Overseas
Friendship Association (#§/NT/E5NEEFER). In 2004, Mr. Zeng was
awarded the title of “Outstanding Contributor” for the development of
Xingning's economy. Mr. Zeng has more than 16 years experience in the
development and management of properties. He is a director of Grand
Prosperity Limited (“Grand Prosperity”), a controlling shareholder of the
company. Mr. Zeng has entered into a service contract with the company
for a term of 3 years, commencing from 22 February 2007 but subject to
retirement by rotation and, being eligible, re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with the company’s articles of
association. Mr. Zeng is the father of Mr. Zeng Sheng, an executive
director of the company.

Mr. Zhang Yiyan, aged 58, is vice-chairman, co-president and an
executive director of the company. Mr. Zhang is a postgraduate of
economic studies, a senior accountant, and qualified as a certified public
accountant of the PRC in 1994. Mr. Zhang was the workshop supervisor,
head of operation and factory director of Guangdong Xingning Second
Agricultural Machinery Factory from 1970 to 1979; the corporate finance
section head, vice chief and chief of Xingning Finance Bureau, Guangdong
from 1979 to 1989; and vice director of the general inspection office for
taxation and finance of Shenzhen, assistant to chief and office director of
Shenzhen Finance Bureau, director of general affair division and director
of account division of Shenzhen Finance Bureau since 1989. Beginning
from 2001, Mr. Zhang has acted as the Party secretary, member of
Party committee and section head of disciplinary section of the Bureau,
overseeing duties such as the supervision and review of finance matters.
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DIRECTORS (Cont’D)

Mr. Zhang has entered into a service contract with the company which
provides for a period of 3 years, commencing from 6 October 2008.
According to the articles of association of the company, Mr. Zhang shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to
retirement by rotation, being eligible, for re-election in accordance with the
company'’s articles of association.

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 51, is the vice chairman, co-president of
the company and an executive director. Dr. Han joined the group in
early 2006. Dr. Han is mainly responsible for determining the overall
planning and development strategy together with Mr. Zeng Yunshu.
Dr. Han is also responsible for the investment, financing and project
planning of the group. Dr. Han has over 21 years experience in the PRC
property sector, including architectural planning and design, real estate
development and management and corporate finance. He was heavily
involved in management activities including investment evaluation and
implementation, project development and leasing for Shanghai Square,
Shanghai Gateway Plaza and Shenzhen Shun Hing Di Wang Plaza.
From 2001 to 2006, Dr. Han was engaged in investment banking and
securities businesses with several investment banks in Hong Kong. Dr.
Han graduated from the Department of Architecture of Xi‘an University of
Architecture and Technology (5% 2&22E%H A 22) with a bachelor degree
in architectural planning and design. In 1999, Dr. Han obtained a doctorate
degree of philosophy in Real Estate Economic and Management from The
University of Hong Kong, and he obtained the professional qualification
of a registered real estate appraiser in the PRC in 1997. Dr. Han has
entered into a service contract with the company for a term of 3 years,
commencing from the 22 February 2007 but subject to retirement by
rotation and, being eligible, re-election in accordance with the company’s
articles of association.
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Mr. Zeng Sheng, aged 29, is vice chairman, co-president and an
executive director of the company. Mr. Zeng joined the group in 2001.
He is responsible for marketing and participating in overall planning of
the group’s businesses. Mr. Zeng graduated from Shenzhen University
in 2001 with a degree majoring in information engineering. Mr. Zeng was
appointed the general manager of Shenzhen Hong Long Commercial
Management Company Limited in 2002. In October 2003, Mr. Zeng
completed the EMBA course in Ling Nan College of Zhongshan University.
Currently, Mr. Zeng is a council member (#2) of Shenzhen Chamber of
International Commerce. Mr. Zeng is the son of Mr. Zeng Yunshu. He is a
director of Grand Prosperity. Mr. Zeng has entered into a service contract
with the company for a term of 3 years, commencing from 22 February
2007 but subject to retirement by rotation and, being eligible, re-election in
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the company'’s
articles of association.

Ms. Ye Qingdong, aged 42, is vice president and an executive director of
the company. Ms. Ye is also the general manager of Hong Long Shenzhen.
She joined the group in 2001. She possesses an engineer qualification
and is responsible for overseeing the group’s properties development
and operation. Ms. Ye graduated from Xinjiang Engineering Institute (7
98 T2P) in 1988 with a degree in engineering majoring in industrial and
civil architecture. Ms. Ye also completed the Executive MBA Program
of Shanghai University of Finance and Economic in 2007. Ms. Ye has
over 12 years of experience in architecture and structural design, project
assessment as well as development. Before joining the group, Ms. Ye
had worked in 158 B A& 4142 ETFT (Xinjiang Textile Design College)
and FIEHE (@) IR{HD AR A R) (COFCO Property (Group) Joint Stock
Company Limited), a company, whose shares are listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Ms. Ye was named “20034E#JI50EHE S RSN
(The best 50 Senior Manager of Shenzhen Property for Year 2003) in 2003.
Ms. Ye has entered into a service contract with the company for a term of
3 years, commencing from 22 February 2007 but subject to retirement by
rotation and, being eligible, re-election in accordance with the company’s
articles of association.
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Mr. Ouyang Junxin, aged 39, is an executive director of the company.
Mr. Ouyang joined the group in 2000 and is responsible for the corporate
finance and overall financial matters of the group. Mr. Ouyang graduated
from N EIARHE RZEEEZ0T (the Business and Trade School
of Huanghe Science and Technology University in Zhengzhou City) in
1993 specialising in industrial economic management. Mr. Ouyang was
a finance manager of Shenzhen Baoan Fu Xing Industry Development
Company (later renamed as “Shenzhen Cairun Property Development
Company Limited” (RIITEHEFEMERZEERAF)) from 1993 to
1996. He has more than 11 years experience in finance and accounting
management. Mr. Ouyang has entered into a service contract with the
company for a term of 3 years, commencing from 22 February 2007
but subject to retirement by rotation and, being eligible, re-election in
accordance with the company'’s articles of association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Jun, aged 47, joined the company in January 2007 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and the member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee, respectively. Dr. Li has extensive experience in enterprise
management and investment risk control. Dr. Li is currently a non-
executive director of Global Flex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 471)
and an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Glass Company,
Limited (Stock Code: 739) respectively, he resigned an executive director
of Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (Stock Code:
1228) on 10 February 2009, all of the companies are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Li has entered into a service contract with the
company until the forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to
retirement by rotation and, being eligible, re-election in accordance with
the company'’s articles of association.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, aged 40, joined the company in January 2007 as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of audit committee,
a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1991, a Master of
Accounting Degree from Curtin University of Technology, Perth, Australia
in 1997 and a Master of Science (Investment Management) Degree
in Finance from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
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in 2001. He is an independent non-executive director of Benefun
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1130), a Hong Kong listed
company, since 4 July 2008. He was an independent non-executive
director of Mascotte Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 136), a Hong Kong
listed company, during the period from 9 March 2005 to 7 April 2008.
Mr. Cheung currently works as the Corporate Development Director
for Profound Heavy Industrial Limited before that he was engaged by
Norstar Automobile Industrial Holding Limited. Mr. Cheung has extensive
experience in accounting and capital markets; he served at Deloitte Touche
from 1991 to 1994, and he was the Vice President and Executive Vice
President of Daiwa Securities and Japan Asia Securities from 1994 to 2002
and 2002 to 2005 respectively. Mr. Cheung also worked as the Corporate
Finance Director of Grant Thornton from 2005 to 2008. Mr. Cheung has
entered into a service contract with the company until the forthcoming
annual general meeting but subject to retirement by rotation and, eligible
for re-election in accordance with the company’s articles of association.

Mr. Wang Fosong, aged 76, is an independent non-executive director,
member of the audit committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee. He is an academician of the Chinese Academy of Sciences
and academician of the Third World Academy of Sciences. He acted as
director of Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy
of Sciences, vice director of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, member
of Presidium of the Chinese Academy of Sciences Academic Divisions,
chairman of Chemistry Division, vice chairman of China Petroleum Society,
vice chairman of Chinese Material Research Society. He is currently
the chief of the High Polymer Science Committee of China Chemical
Society, vice chairman of China Association of Senior Scientists and
Technicians and vice chairman of China International Culture Exchange
Centre. Mr. Wang was a member of the 7th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a member of the 8th and 9th National People's
Congress Standing Committee and the National People's Congress
Foreign Affairs Committee. He was awarded with the National Scientific
and Technological Progress Special Prize, National Natural Science
Award, International Award of the Society of High Polymer Science,
Japan and Science and Technology Advancement Award of Ho Leung
Ho Lee Foundation. Mr. Wang has been an independent chairman of a
company which was listed in the main board of Singapore Stock Exchange
in November 2005. The company has ceased the listing status after
acquisition by investor in April 2007.
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Mr. Wang has entered into a service contract with the company which
provides for an initial period of 1 year, commencing from 6 October 2008.
According to the articles of association of the company, Mr. Wang shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting but subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
company'’s articles of association.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 44, joined the company in 2006 and
is the company secretary of the company. Mr. Chu has over 20 years
experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and taxation. He is the
company secretary of the company responsible for corporate finance,
financial reporting and compliance and company secretarial matters of the
group. Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Master
Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also an associate member of both
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

Ms. Wei Haiyan, aged 33, is the group's deputy chief executive and the
deputy general manager of Hong Long Shenzhen. Ms. Wei has completed
all the courses in the master of digital management programme at the
CIMS Engineering Technology Research Centre, Tsinghua University. Ms.
Wei is mainly responsible for the administration and human resources
of the group. She graduated from the International Finance Department
of Shenzhen University in 1993, majoring in International Finance. She
has over 11 years experience in management. Ms. Wei is a committee
member of the People's Political Consultative Committee of Meizhou,
Guangdong Province.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (ConT’D)

Ms. Zhong Lili, aged 48, joined the group at the end of 2001 and is
currently deputy chief executive of the group and deputy general manager
of Hong Long Shenzhen. She is responsible for the overall legal affairs of
the group. Ms. Zhong graduated from the Southwest University of Political
Science and Law (FAFBUA A EE) and obtained a Bachelor Degree in Law in
1984. Ms. Zhong worked at the Policy Research Office of the Department
of Justice of Sichuan Province (PU)I|4 AR R ZZE) in 1984 and she
was appointed as a lecturer of the Law School at the Southwest China
Institute for Nationalities (FEF8 RIZZFt) in 1991. Ms. Zhong worked as a
legal adviser to a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 1998 and
was appointed as a legal consultant in a state-owned enterprise in 1999.
Ms. Zhong has extensive knowledge in PRC legal affairs and approximately
21 years in law practice.

Mr. Xie Xinhao, aged 54, joined the group in 2003 and is deputy chief
executive of the group and financial controller of Hong Long Shenzhen.
He is responsible for the financial affairs of the group. Mr. Xie has many
years of experience in finance and accounting practice and in real estate
development and management in the PRC. Before joining the group in
2003, Mr. Xie had worked in a state-owned enterprise and a property
developing company.

Mr. Li Hansheng, aged 56, joined the group in 2004. He is currently
deputy chief executive of the group and general manager of Huizhou
Yintaida Company Limited (“Huizhou Yintaida"”), an operating subsidiary
under HonglLong Shenzhen. He is responsible for the overall development
matters of Huizhou Yintaida. Mr. Li graduated from the Central China
Normal University (ZEFRAR&IAEE) and worked in Shenzhen Property
Trading Centre (RYITIEHEZ SH L) in 1994. In 2004, Mr. Li joined
Hong Long Shenzhen which appointed him as the general manager of
Huizhou Yintaida. Mr. Li has many years experience in the sale of real
estate in Shenzhen.

Mr. Xu Jianyi, aged 54, joined the group in 2007. He is currently deputy
chief executive of the group and general manager of the Investment
Development Centre of the group, and is responsible for the investment
and planning affairs in the real estate development projects of the group.
Mr. Xu positioned in a Hong Kong listed company engaging in real estate
development from 1995 to 2003, and was responsible for the acquisition,
development and management work. Mr. Xu has over 11 years experience
in real estate development and management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CoNT’D)

Mr. Cao Yongfeng, aged 35, joined the group in 2003. He was the deputy
chief controller of the construction division of Hong Long Shenzhen and is
responsible for overseeing the construction works of the group’s property
development projects. Mr. Cao has been appointed general manager
of Zhajiakun Century Way Real Estate Development Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the group in November 2007. He was
technical supervisor for a large construction engineering company from
1997 to 2000. He has over 9 years experience in property development.
Mr. Cao graduated from the School of Architecture of Chang Sha Railway
University (R #3827) in 1997.

Mr. Chen Liangman, aged 42, joined the group in 2002. He is the group's
sales director and is responsible for the overall sales affairs of the group.
Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangsu Chemical Engineering College (T &/t T
E05%) in 1990. In 1997, Mr. Chen was an officer of the trading department
in Zhonglian Properties Company (FEfEHiZE A 7)) and a sales manager
in Jinghetian Industrial Company ()0 HE %2 7]), both companies are
located in Shenzhen. Mr. Chen joined the group in 2002 as sales manager.
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Directors’ Report EE S &

The board of directors (the “Board”) are pleased to present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 16
to the financial statements.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure
of the group in preparation for the public listing of the company’s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the shares of the company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 22 February 2007 (the “Listing Date”).

Details of the group reorganisation are fully explained in the paragraph

headed “Corporate Reorganisation” in Appendix VIl to the prospectus of
the company dated 8 February 2007 (the “Prospectus”).

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 58.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company, before dividends,
of approximately RMB3,546,000 (2007: RMB250,685,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Details of the movements in the reserves of
the group and the company during the year are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the group during the year amounted to
RMB430,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the group during the year are set
out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in properties, plant and equipment of the group
and the company during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the group's largest
customer and the five largest customers taken together accounted for
10.0% and 24.0% of the aggregate of the group’s total turnover for the
year.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
20.0% and 26.8% of the group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their respective associates or, so far as the directors
are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the company has any interest in any of the said top five
customers and suppliers of the group for the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan
Dr. HAN Qinchun
Mr. ZENG Sheng
Ms. YE Qingdong
Mr. OUYANG Junxin

(Chairman and President)
(appointed on 6 October 2008)

Non-ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZHANG Huagiao (resigned on 26 September 2008)
INnpePENDENT NloN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong

Ms. LIN Wei Fang

(appointed on 6 October 2008)
(resigned on 6 October 2008)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page 21 to
page 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the company for a term of 3 years commencing from the Listing Date or
their respective dates of appointment. Each service contract will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than six months’ notice in writing
served by either party. Each of the independent non-executive directors
has been appointed to hold the office until the end of the forthcoming
general meeting. In addition, the appointment of each of directors is
subject to retirement by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election in accordance with the company’s articles of association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION
(ConT’D)

In accordance with the provisions of the company's articles of association,
Mr. Zeng Yunshu, Mr. Zhang Yiyan, Dr. Han Qinchun, Mr. Zeng Sheng, Dr.
Li Jun, Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr. Wang Fosong, will retire from the
Board at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 10
to financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the rules governing the listing of securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered all independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING HHEP B - MR SRESF R Z
SHARES OR DEBENTURES BE 25

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of the directors in the shares, %\2008£F1L2531 B %%ﬁfz}xz}aﬁ%ﬁjﬂﬂ*ﬁ
underlying shares and debentures of the company or any of its associated BORE (17 KR IRGIFE XV 32 8%) ([

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Hg'k‘%@ Dzt - R R EH R RERE
Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in ﬁ%&ﬁqhf'%@'lﬁﬂ%3521'%5?{?32%55%?)?‘535%
the register required to be kept by the company under section 352 of the HRBEEMBITAEBETEF R ZRET

SFO or as otherwise notified to the company and the Stock Exchange B (THRAESF A D) 0 51T M8 AR B R AL T 2
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by directors of BT

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

RAEDBRB2HE
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interests to
shares total number
held under of shares
Number of shares equity in issue*
ROHE derivatives %
Personal Family Corporate BRALTE HERTRH
interests interests interests T E#E1HE Total BHZEHLL*
Name of Director E=fA EPN: 423 Riks DEER RIAZHE @t %
Mr. Zeng Yunshu LEEEAE 2,426,000 - - - 2,426,000 0.23
Dr. Han Qinchun BREET 9,908,000’ - - - 9,908,000 0.95
Mr. Zeng Sheng DREAE 380,000 - 582,320,000 - 582,700,000 56.02
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERTL 102,000 - - 5,000,000 5,102,000 0.49
Mr. Ouyang Junxin B &RETEE 104,000 - - 2,000,000° 2,104,000 0.20
Dr. Li Jun FHELT - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RERMAEE - - - 1,000,000° 1,000,000 0.10
Notes: st
1. This represents interests held by the relevant director as beneficial owner. 1. IEREBESEAERBAARA 2 ER -
2. This represents interests held by Mr. Zeng Sheng through Grand Prosperity 2. 136 R 2 5 SE 438 38 Grand Prosperity Limited
Limited (“Grand Prosperity”), which holds 582,320,000 shares of the ([Grand Prosperity]) #7482 #z% * i1 Grand
company. Mr. Zeng Sheng has 80% interest in Grand Prosperity, he is Prosperity$% 7 582,320,000 8 A X &)k {5 &
therefore deemed to be interested in 582,320,000 shares of the company. B £ A Grand Prosperity 2 80% f#25
i 4% A& ¥ A 582,320,000 & AR A 71 RR 15 2 #
Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A 7 33
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (ConT’D)

3. This represents interests in options held by the relevant director as a
beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares granted by
the company under the Pre-IPO Share Options or Shares Option Scheme,
details of which are set out in the section headed Share Option.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
company in issue as at 31 December 2008 (i.e. 1,040,250,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the company or any of its Associated Corporations which
had been entered in the register kept by the company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the company or any of its subsidiaries
or its holding companies was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to protect the group's interest in its current business activities,
each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and Mr. Zeng Yunshu has
as covenantor entered into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) dated 31 January 2007 in favour of the company, the
details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-
competition, each of the covenantors has undertaken, subject to the terms
therein, to the company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries)
that it/he would not, and would procure that its/his associates and/or
companies controlled by it/him (other than the group) would not, either on
its/his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, directly or indirectly be interested or engaged in or acquire
or hold an interest (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent
or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business
which is or is about to be engaged in any business which competes or is
likely to compete directly or indirectly with the group’s business, those
other businesses of the group as set out in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong,
the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which the group markets
or sells its products and/or in which any member of the group carries on
business mentioned above from time to time. The company has received
an annual declaration from each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Sheng and
Mr. Zeng Yunshu for its/his respective compliance with the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the company under the Pre IPO-Share Options and Share
Option Scheme to the directors to subscribe for shares of the company, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code is set out in the section headed “Share Option” of this
report below.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (ConT’D)

o 0 U B i 2 O RE R (A)

B bitsh - FRARLE - ENBLAE - KRR
M A B SRR A R ERT SLE R 25 B
REEAEBEE AR ARG A EAMER
2R -

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL FEBRRPAAT] AR Z HELS
OF THE COMPANY

M2008F 12 A31H  RARRBRMGHEARIE
FH M HEIRPIZE336 18R A RIZBFE 2 Bt
Fracsk B2 S AL (BEERIN AT ¢

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of those persons (other than the
directors) in the shares of the company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Percentage
Number of of shares to
underlying total number of
shares held shares in issue
under equity %
derivatives BRMEE AT
Capacity in which Number of ERALTE BR1DEE
Name shares were held shares IESEHERE ZED
=L RIBEERG 255 RAVEE aripa {| %
Zeng Sheng' Beneficial owner 380,000 - 0.04%
2 EREBA
Interest of controlled corporation 582,320,000 - 55.98%
XERAIER
Grand Prosperity’ Beneficial owner 582,320,000 - 55.98%
EREBA
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.? Interest of controlled corporation 60,608,000 9,000,000 6.69%

("LB HLD")

RNl 5
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL

OF THE COMPANY (ConT’D)
Notes:
1. This represents (i) 582,320,000 shares held by Grand Prosperity which is

owned as to 80% by Mr. Zeng Sheng and 20% by Mr. Zeng Yunshu, both of
them are executive directors and (i) 380,000 shares held by Mr. Zeng Sheng
as beneficial owner.

2. Lehman Brothers Commercial Corporation Asia Limited (“LBCCA"), which
holds in total of 69,608,000 interests in the company as beneficial owner,
is owned 50% interests by each of LBCCA Holdings | LLC (“"LBCCA 1") and
LBCCA Holdings Il LLC (“"LBCCA I1"). Both LBCCA | and LBCCA Il themselves
are wholly owned by LB HLD and accordingly, the shares in which LBCCA
are shown to be interested are also included in the shares in which LB HLD
is shown to be interested. The number of shares held and underlying shares
held under equity derivatives has been adjusted based on the information
from LB HLD.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
company in issue as at 31 December 2008 (i.e. 1,040,250,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the company which had been recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the company from the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report and within the knowledge
of the directors, there was sufficiency of public float of the company's
securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company'’s Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the group towards its growth and success, an aggregate of
23,000,000 share options of the company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
have been granted by the company to, and accepted by the relevant
employees prior to listing of the company’s share on the Stock Exchange.
On the same day, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”)
was adopted by the shareholder’s written resolution of the company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in the shares of the company which may fall to be
issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/or may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and/or Share Option Scheme,
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2008, a total of 81,139,000 share options were
outstanding which comprised 19,000,000 share options and 62,139,000
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options and the Share
Option Scheme respectively.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and the Share Option Scheme:

(a)  Pre-IPO SHaARe OpTIONS
Purpose

Recognition of the contributions made by employees of the group
towards its growth and success.

Exercise Period

Since 22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 unless extended in
writing by the Board (and approved by the independent non-
executive directors) in its absolute discretion. Each of the Pre-
IPO Share Options (to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically at the end of such option period.

Exercise Price

HK$0.60 per shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Pre-
IPO Share Options, representing a discount of 75% to the maximum
IPO Offer Price as described in the Prospectus. The exercise price
was determined in recognition of the contributions made to the
group by the respective grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Options.
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(a)  Pre-IPO SHare OpTions (ConT'D)

Other Conditions

(1) The grant of the Pre-IPO Share Options is subject to the
following additions conditions:

(a)

(b)

the commencement of dealings in shares;

any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options must be
made in full and not in part;

the Pre-IPO Share Options are personal to the relevant
grantees and shall not be transferred or assigned,
and shall constitute a term of the employment of the
relevant grantees by the group;

the grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Options shall adhere
to any undertaking or restrictions that may be further
imposed on them by the company, the Stock Exchange
or the sponsor as described in the Prospectus; and

any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options shall
be further subject to any guidelines issued by the
company from time to time in order to ensure full
compliance with the Listing Rules.

(2)  The grantees shall not dispose of their respective shares
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to them in the following manner:

(a)

in any number greater than 30% of all the shares of
issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to them within (2) two years from the Listing Date;

in any number greater than 60% of all the Shares
issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to them within (3) three years from the Listing Date;
and
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’D) PR HE (48)
(A)  PRe-IPO SHare OpTions (CoNT'D) (A) BEXRABFBERNRREGE)
(c)  all the shares issued pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share (c) BErMmBAHETHEFERN - &
Options granted to them within (4) four years from the ERBETREEAAHES
Listing Date. Al R AR #E B 1T 2 P A IR
,T/'\ o
(3)  The Pre-IPO Share Options (if not already exercised) held (3) BERNEZEAFEEZHRNARE
by each individual grantee shall lapse automatically upon ERTRIRAE (W RTEE) FRAE
cessation of his/her employment with the group, regardless B &I ERAZARARKB (TR
of how such cessation of employment arises. ERARIEER) -
(8)  SHARE OPTION SCHEME (8) RRBRAEETE
Purpose 128

RYDRBHAREABEL T L A EE
PIfEH 2 BRE -

Recognize and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees had
made or may make to the group.

Participants SHE
Eligible participants include: ABIRSHERE
(@)  any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, (a) ZAEE - AEEFEAEZRNZ AT

supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
group or a company in which the group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate"”);

ZARMBRABAZEMNES &
BB HEAR BP
7o RIE - BHERAATSURES
(TEEEAL -

(b)  the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an (b) FEAEAZTAZZHZAREMZ
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include BERZE2RER  BREAEEK
any director, employee, consultant professional, customer, BBAZEWES B8 - BN -
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the HEAR  KF - fiER - RE -
group or an Affiliate; or B BRAZERERS 5 3k

() a company beneficially owned by any director, employee, () AEESIHMBAZAWNES- &
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, B FM- -BXAE TP H#tE
adviser of or contractor to the group or an Affiliate. B RIE B FRASRE

FIE=HAZ AT °
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D)

(8)

SHARE OpTION ScHEME (ConT'D)

Price of Shares

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the nominal value of the share;

(b)  the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c)  the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Total number of Shares available for issue and the percentage

of the issued shares capital that it represents as at the date of

this annual report

104,025,000 Shares, being approximately 10% of the issued shares
of the company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.
Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of which,

from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on which such
option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can

be exercised

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance

HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid

Not applicable.

2
o
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’D) PR HE (48)
(8)  SHaRe OpTiON ScHEME (ConT'D) (8) RBRFEFTEI(E)
Remaining life of the scheme ZiTE| 2T F 5
The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017, ZETE AR EREZ 201741 A 31
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions H EBETSREEARBRE  B%
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other HEZIEXRAEEM A EE &S T2
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing WA RBH - Rzt alHAEEBERE
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and ¥2017F1 A31 BRI ARETERRFA
remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017 shall ETRANES 2 RRE - B BRI
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant, BE 2 EBGERTAITE - BEZTE
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme. ZHARE ER °
Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the REZE2008F 12 A31HILFER  RIK
Pre-IPO Share Options, during the year ended 31 December 2008 HRAFRBERRERL Z AR EE
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: BT (TR E ETARRIE17.07 ) ¢
During the year
FR
Lapsed*/ Exercise price
cancelled TP E Exercise
As ati Granted  Exercised ZX¥*/ As ati? HK$ period
Category $hl 01.01.2008 2R [SEGy:d BH#E 31122008 BT Eayid
Directors =
Ms. Ye Qingdong EERLT 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Mr. Ouyang Junxin BISEREE 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
21.02.2012
Continuous Contracts FEAKEE 12,000,000 -~ -~ ~ 12,000,000 0.60 22.08.2007-
Employees 21.02.2012
Total @t 19,000,000 - - -~ 19,000,000
Notes: Bz -
1. The vesting period for all option granted is six months from the Listing Date. 1. FEERNABREZEZBH AHB LW AR
~MEA -
2. The exercise price of the shares options, representing a discount of 756% to 2. REEZTEERBREEMAZESERR
the maximum IPO Offer Price as described in the Prospectus. FEEBIETS% °
49 Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1ER AR A F
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(s)

SHARE OpTION ScHEME (CONT'D)

Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2008
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

i Joc e ()
(8)  RRRVERE ()

REZE2008F 12 A31HIEFER R
R EIR 2 R E S T (ThiR
ELEWEAE17.071&5)) ¢

Hong Long Holdings Limited SB[ B[R A 7

During the year
il Exercise
Lapsed/ price
cancelled T8  Exercise
Date of grant As at Granted  Exercised BA%/ Asat HKS period
Category £l RIEBH  01.01.2008 ERM BfTE BHE# 31122008 A7 i
Directors Bz
Mr. Zhang Huagiao* KiLExE 15,06.2007 7,000,000 - - (7,000,000} - 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017
Dr. Lidun PREL 15.06.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.06.2017
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam ~ REM L4 16.05.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.06.2017
Ms.LinWeiFang®  #EFRL® 15062007 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000} - 184 15.11.2007-
14.05.2017
Continuous Contract  K#EAKER 15062007 13,309,000 - - (170000 13,139,000 184 15.11.2007-
Employees 14.05.2017
10.10.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 299 10.04.2008-
09.10.2017
Consultants e 15,06.2007 18,000,000 - - - 18,000,000 184 15.11.2007-
14.06.2017
10.10.2007 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 299 10.04.2008-
09.10.2017
10.10.2007% 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 299 10.10.2008-
09.10.2017
13.02.2008 - 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 170 13.08.2008-
12.08.2018
Total @t 67,309,000 8,000,000 - (13,170,000 62,139,000
Notes: M EE
1. The vesting period for all the options granted is six months from the date of 1 ECERERBREZ BN SHEAREAS
acceptance of the offer, save as the one marked with “#", the vesting period REFTANEA - HERRBREME [ # ] 5258 - AR
is one year from the date of acceptance of the offer. BHAREAE L A g —F -
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 2. R 2T RESEEHRETOREAR
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the company's share capital. B Z IR CN R B M (F % o
3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 3. ERBECRBERES - FAIREREEE
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to retained profits. RZBEREBERDEN -
4. Mr. Zhang resigned as non-executive director of the company on 26 4. SRR 200849 A 26 HEHEAAFIENITE
September 2008. e N
5. Mes. Lin resigned as independent non-executive director of the company on 6 5. A7 20084 10 A 6 HEHEA A RIE L IEH
October 2008. TEE M-
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D) o SRR (7))
(C)  FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS (C) RBRENDABERMBR

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on both the Black-Scholes pricing model and the
binomial lattice model. The contractual life and expectations of early
exercise of the share options were used as inputs into relevant

PR T RBEN AR EEF TRIERAD
mo#TRAEBERN R - HEARERERN
FHE - RBRENANFHRIAMERT
EIEREEEABTEERER -

models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

BIREAI DA ER BR

Grant date
RHAH
31 January 15 May 10 October 13 February
2007 2007 2007 2008
200718318 2007%5815H 20074108108 2008F2513H

Fair value at measurement date RETERENARE HK$0.78 HK$0.47 HK$0.64 HK$0.54

0.78%E7T 04787 0.647E7TC 0.547 7T

Share price (B N/A HK$1.84 HK$2.93 HK$1.61

TEA 1.84% T 2935 7T 1.6187T

Exercise price 11018 HK$0.60 HK$1.84 HK$2.99 HK$1.70

0.60787T 1.84% T 2.9957T 1,707

Expected volatility (expressed as TRER IR (WA 47.9% 48.9% 51.1% 56.2%
weighted average volatility ER PR AR IE
used in the models) EORERT)

Option life (expressed as RIEFH(AZE 3 years 3.25 years 10 years 10 years
weighted average life used ER PR AR IE 3F 3.25%F 109 10F
in the models) THERRT)

Expected dividends RHRE 4.4% 3.4% 1.2% 0.0%

Risk-free interest rate (based on ERRFR (LAINE 4.0% 4.2% 43% 2.7%
Exchange Fund Notes) HeZEHE)

Valuation model used RAmbEES Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes Binomial Binomial

ANz -8Bl EhR -8 ZER ZIER

TERAR 18 TOAR IR SR 18 (AR R W3 R 0 e 7
BT FERFE)  WRRIEARATBNERR
EALfTRHBE B R ARALE o

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information.

R R AR RO BRI M e PR
WERB N BN AR ERE - BIREL
EIWEEATISRIER -

Share options were granted under a service condition. The condition
has not been taken into account the fair value measurement of
the services received on the grant date. There were no market
conditions associated with the share options granted.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the company and its subsidiaries are primarily in
form of contributions to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong
Kong's Mandatory Provident Funds, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the company did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the company's listed securities during the year.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code. The directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date as set
out in note 37 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in
forthcoming annual general meeting of the company. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zeng Yunshu
Chairman

24 April 2009
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Corporate Governance Report 12 &4k &

The company has always recognised the importance of shareholders
transparency and accountability. It is the belief of the Board that
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good corporate
governance. The company is committed to ensure high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders.

The directors of the company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as stated in Appendix
14 to the Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which has
been revised and the amendments became effective on 1 January
2009. As far as the Code is concerned, the company complies
with all aspects of the Code except for the Code of A.2.1 regarding
the separation of roles of chairman and president (chief executive
officer) which, in the company’s opinion, would not be appropriate
for the adoption by the company. The role of chairman and president
(chief executive officer) of the company are performed by the
same individual, % ZAH&E5EE (Mr. Zeng Yunshu). The Board meets
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the company. The Board considered that this structure does not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the company and believes that this structure
enables the group to make and implement decision promptly and
efficiently. Therefore, the Board are of the view that the role of
chairman and president (chief executive officer) of the company can
be performed by the same individual.

Hong Long Holdings Limited JEE1ER AR A F
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(B)

(€)

Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors. Specific enquiry
has been made to all directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

In addition, the company has adopted provisions of the Model Code
as written guidelines for relevant employees (as defined in provision
A.5.4 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules) in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the company. Such relevant employees shall
abide by the provisions of the Model Code.

In consideration of the new amendments to the Model Code (the
“Amendments”), which became effective on the 1st quarter of
2009, the Board has revised its Model Code corresponding to the
Amendments.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
company and to the exercising of independent opinion.

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

(Chairman and President)
(appointed on 6 October 2008)

Dr. HAN Qinchun
Mr. ZENG Sheng
Ms. YE Qingdong
Mr. OUYANG Junxin

Non-ExecuTive DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao (resigned on 26 September 2008)

(B)

(C)
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’D) (C) EFe (H)

ComposiTioN (CoNT'D) AR ()

InperENDENT NoN-ExEcuTiVE DIRECTORS: BIYEHITES

Dr. LI Jun FEEL

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam REMEAE

Mr. WANG Fosong (appointed on 6 October 2008) FHREE (720084 10 A
6 AEZRT)

Ms. LIN Wei Fang (resigned on 6 October 2008) WEF 2+ (742008410 A
6 BEHE)

The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page BIEEREHNAFRE2IBEEE26

21 to page 26 of this annual report. B

Numger oF MEeTINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE ERTEERBFENRE

The Board normally has four scheduled meetings a year and
meet at other times as and when required to review financial and
internal control, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the group. During the year ended 31 December
2008, a total number of 10 regular and adhoc Board meetings, 2
audit committee meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings
and 2 nomination committee meeting were held. Minutes of these
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the company and
are open for inspection by the directors.

EFE-REFETENAGEE UEA
EERET Ei*ﬁ.ﬂ‘$%lﬂ’]ﬁ7ﬁ&&?\j
Beix - AfrE NREIEM N EEHE
£§°§ﬁ§2008¢125315¢¢FW’/ﬁ\
HBETTIOREHRENESTEEE 2
REZEZESEH 2 FHNEEeSR
&Z/A?E%iﬁaaui ZEGHEMNLE
AAABIRARAMERT  WARHES
ER -
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’D) (C) EF (H)

Numser oF MEeeTings HELD AND ATTENDANCE (CONT'D) ERTEERBFENRE (E)
HZE2008F 12 A31 HILFER » REE
DHENENESHFEESTE S B%
ZEg FTHEZEESGMERZEEHNE
R R sREk AN T

The individual attendance records of each director, on a named
basis, at the meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee during the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings entitled to attend

HEBRNESENRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEpE £Eg EREEE FMEEE REZE8
Mr. ZENG Yunshu BEESAE 10/10 - 2/2 -
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan' REK S AE 5/5 - - -
Dr. HAN Qinchun BRERLT 10/10 - - -
Mr. ZENG Sheng LR 10/10 - - -
Ms. YE Qingdong BEERZL 10/10 - - -
Mr. OUYANG Junxin ENC T 10/10 - - -
Mr. ZHANG Huagjiao? SRALAE 5t A2 3/3 - - -
Dr. LI Jun FHEL 6/10 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam SREMITAE 6/10 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. WANG Fosong? TR 2/5 - - -
Ms. LIN Wei Fang* Mg Lt 25 2/2 - 7
Notes: 3T
1. Mr. ZHANG Yiyan was appointed on 6 October 2008. RZEKFHERN 20084F 10 A6 HESEE -
2. Mr. ZHANG Huagiao resigned on 26 September 2008. FAEFE AR 20084F 9 A 26 HEHE °
3. Mr. WANG Fosong was appointed on 6 October 2008. TEM AR 200844 10 A6 HESR(T -
4. Ms. LIN Wei Fang resigned on 6 October 2008. MEF Z £ 20084 10 A6 HEHT »
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’D) (C) EFe (H)

REsSPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to ensure that there is a competent
executive management which is able to run the company in a sound
and efficient manner. The Board is also responsible for establishing
the company’s business strategies and plans from time to time
to ensure that the operations of the company are conducted
effectively.

The Board is responsible for preparation of the financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements, the generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board also conducts appropriate internal control procedures and
reviews risk management strategies and polices of the company to
ensure that the company runs its business in compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements with prudence and integrity.

REsPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS

Each executive director is delegated individual authority and
responsibility to oversee and monitor the operations of a specific
business unit, and to implement the strategies and polices set
out by the Board. The independent non-executive directors
provide independent opinion and share their knowledge and
experiences with the other members of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee.

ANNUAL CoNFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXEcUTIVE DIRECTORS

The company has received, from each independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination
committee consider all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.

Terms ofF Non-ExecuTive DIRECTORs

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive directors
has been appointed to hold the office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In addition, the appointment of each of the non-
executive and independent non-executive directors is subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the company’s Articles of
Association.

EFe e ERRTRERERREAQF
ZERBREE UK EAREE
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(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established a remuneration committee (“RC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The RC comprises the following three members:

(i) Dr. Li Jun, chairman of RC (independent non-executive
director);

(ii) Mr. Zeng Yunshu (executive director, chairman & president of
the Board); and

(i)~ Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (independent non-executive director).

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for the directors and senior management. During the year
ended 31 December 2008, a total number of 2 meetings were
held to determine the remuneration policy for the directors and/or
senior management. The attendance records of the RC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 49 of this annual report.

The RC has primary responsibility for making recommendations
for approval by the Board with respect to matters relating to the
remuneration of the executive directors of the company. The major
responsibilities of the remuneration committee are:

(i) to make recommendations on the company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of the directors;

(ii) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the
executive directors, and to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the non-executive directors for the Board's
approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv)  to administer and make determinations with regard to the
company's share option scheme.

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the RC. Details of the amount of directors’ emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.
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(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (E) HHZEHY

The Board has established an audit committee (“AC") with written
terms of reference as suggested under the code provision under the
Code. The AC comprises the following three members, all of them
are independent non-executive directors:

(i) Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (chairman of AC),
(ii) Dr. Li Jun; and
(i)~ Mr. Wang Fosong.

The AC meets at least twice a year to review and approve the
group's financial reporting process and internal control system.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, a total number of 2
meetings were held. The attendance records of the AC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings Held and
Attendance” on page 49 of this annual report.

The AC acknowledged the new amendments to the terms of
reference of the AC under the Listing Rules in relation to, inter
alias, abolishment of the requirement of appointment of qualified
accountants and the amendments to the terms of reference of the
AC and thereafter appropriate actions have been taken by the Board
and the AC accordingly.

The major responsibilities of the AC are:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the company’s external
auditors, and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process;

(ii) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the company, and to
review significant and judgemental financial reporting issues
contained therein;

(i) to review the company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems; and

(iv)  to discuss with the management the system of internal
controls, and to ensure that the management has discharged
its duties and responsibilities in implementing an effective
internal control system.

The group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2008
have been reviewed by AC.
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(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (ConT’D)

(F)

AuDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the fees paid/payable to
auditors in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided
by the auditors to the group were as follows:

(E) #FHZEG (4)

BB A &

B ZE2008F 12 A31 HIEFE - BAZEED
A A% 55 B f (A R BUIR TS RO E R BUR
MER,/FEN FREmERMT

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000
Nature of services REMHE BT T BT T
Audit %8 1,800 2,084
IPO services AR - 3,138
Others Eftb 600 696
Total st 2,400 5,918
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (F) RBZE®

The Board has established a nomination committee (“NC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision
under the Code. The members of nomination committee are
independent non-executive directors, namely:

(i) Mr. Wang Fosong (chairman of NC),
(ii) Dr. Li Jun; and
(i)~ Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam.

The NC meets at least once a year to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of directors and the management of
the Board's succession. During the year ended 31 December 2008,
a total number of 2 meetings were held. The attendance records
of the nomination committee, on a named basis, are set out under
section of “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” on page 49
of this annual report.
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(F)

(G)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (ConT’p)

The major responsibilities of the NC are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the chairman
and the president (chief executive officer).

During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations of
the NC. The retirement and rotation of the following directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have been approved by the
NC:—

i) Mr. ZENG Yunshu (executive director);

ii) Mr. ZHANG Yiyan (executive director);

i)~ Dr. HAN Qinchun (executive director);

iv)  Mr. ZENG Sheng (executive director);

V) Dr. LI Jun (independent non-executive director);

vi)  Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam (independent non-executive director);
and

(vii)  Mr. WANG Fosong (independent non-executive director).

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to protect the group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Board and AC shall also conduct
periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the group’s
internal control system. The internal control system includes a
well established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and polices adopted by the
Board and effective employment of the resources of the company,
in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made
to the company’s assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.
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INTERNAL CONTROL(CoNT’D)

The Board and AC assess the effectiveness of the internal control
system and procedures based on information derived from
discussions with the management of the company and its external
auditors. The Board and AC believe that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
as well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the group. The group has a defined goal
for each department to accomplish, these goals were discussed
in the Board meeting and pass on to the management through
the executive directors. These goals will be implemented and
closely monitored by the executive directors who shall review the
operational and financial results from time to time, and to take any
necessary actions for the improvement of it business activities.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The company is committed to maintain high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community
at large. The company provides information in relation to the
company and its business in its annual report which is to be
dispatched to shareholders of the company on a timely basis. The
group's corporate website (http://www.hlkg.net/) also provides an
effective communication medium through which the public and
investors can obtain updated information about the group.

All the shareholders of the company are to be given a 21 days’ notice
of the date and venue of the company’s Annual General Meeting
where the shareholders have an opportunity to communicate
directly with the Board.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 3 #% 2i B R &

eprac

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Hong Long Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Long
Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “company”) set out on
pages 58 to 152, which comprise the consolidated and the company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

FBEERAERDBTRR
2B BENRE
(REAES#HEAMA TR BHRAE])

Az E0EM (LA A8 [ 3P ) B &5 EH 5 58
BEEF12EREZERERAR (A TEHBER
[RAR) BREMHERE - LA MBEHRERE
ER2008F 12 A31 HWMAERARIEERAR
REBEZALEFENGREBERR  HEER
BE}RANGEEERER  UREESHBER
18 22 T HAth B TE AR RE o

o 2 B s AR R IS I AT

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

BERFEZAARRBEEERAMASRME
BB BREE R EFB(RBAGODORER
RGHREEEMAFHINBRZERHEERER - &
REBRERT  BERAEEFEFRREATMA
3 51 35 B 75 SRR AR BA RO AR E I - DAGE BF TS
BETFAEANRFRERMEBNEARHER
Bt EREMEAEENEAEE  RIRBR
TEHAERGRHAR

A% i Y AT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
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due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

HRERRE  ZBEMEREZARRERE
B AT 5 %5 R AR R A AR - DA
RETEENEZIZF - BXLIFAH QB AL
EHRREERER - BRITEREFMEESA
RANERRNSEERPIEL R ER
AR - U RHEM S REANEEIIHIT A

HMHERE - RPIMESHERZERERTRENE
ERRMANERE RIRHER -

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31
December 2008 and of the group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement &Z &8 R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZENF+—-HA=+—HIFFZE

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) (XA BT TS7)

Turnover =2

Cost of sales SHE AR

Gross profit ER

Other net income/(loss) Hiv sz (E8) F58

Other revenue E AU A

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER

General and administrative expenses — & MITHE R

Other operating expenses Efh @& A

Net increase in fair value of WEMERRER
investment properties EhNFEE

Gain on disposal of a jointly controlled  Hi% 2k [E12 | B 82 U ek
entity

Profit from operations Feg=prvil

Net change in fair value of derivative ~ $TAE£ R T EA

financial instruments R ENES)FRE
Finance costs A& A
Profit before taxation BREL AT T
Income tax FriS it
Profit for the year AREEa A
Attributable to: DA A FEfh -

Equity shareholders of the company A2 AR

Minority interests DEIR R R

Profit for the year AREE A

Earnings per share BREF (NRHEEW)
(RMB cents)

Basic R

Diluted g

The notes on pages 65 to 152 form part of these financial statements.
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2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARBTT ARETT
4 & 14 119,628 411,677
(73,716) (176,994)
45,912 234,683
5 37,097 (24,608)
6 55,491 40,476
(5,226) (11,347)
(32,273) (53,769)
(40,831) (20,356)
17 62,120 180,352
7 - 140,765
122,290 486,196
58,533 (28,182)
8(a) (90,227) (55,091)
8 90,596 402,923
S (87,236) (1562,421)
3,360 250,502
3,546 250,685
(186) (183)
3,360 250,502

13
0.34 24.19
0.34 23.63

5565 B =5 152 B A MY oE B A M 5 R 1) — &6
)




Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepaid land costs

Trading securities

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Bank loans

Trade and other payables, and accruals

Receipts in advance
Rental and other deposits
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan)

FRBEE
(U & ]
REWE
BERIAEE

RBEE

&

R LT R R e L At R MK
B LR AR
BEEES

ERER

R MRLFEY

MEEE

RITER

FERRRIR - HM BN R TER & A
TAUERR

HEFEMIES

FEfNTHEIR

REBEEFE

EELERRBEE
FRBEE

STREE

BERARE

AEFE

Note
Ffi%

R

15
17
29(b)

19
20
20(d)
18
22
Z3)

25
26
27
28
29(a)

24
29(b)

(AAE

Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 EEAE R
=+—4

At 31 December 2008 =

; L
(F+ A

2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
11,053 9,772
1,319,606 1,257,486
38,249 14,744
L.._.1se8308 1282002
1,602,452 932,860
528,486 519,306
219,549 220,620
967 3,733
59,846 176,433
44,102 397,101
| el 2250083 __
510,124 219,019
402,576 314,578
86,094 34,652
11,129 10,944
245,652 242,886
L.._1255575 . 822079
| el [
L.._2368735 2703.976 __
699,725 956,386
209,207 113,864
I 908982 . 1070250 _
1,659,803 1,639,726
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 EEARBE

At 31 December 2008 R-—FEZENFE+—-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) — (AA M FTIIR)

2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B = AR¥ET T ARET T
Equity =
Share capital &N 10,296 10,296
Reserves & 1,636,425 1,617,162
Total equity attributable to equity 2~ 2 BRERRR
shareholders of the company FE(LRER AR EE 31 1,646,721 1,627,458
Minority interests DERRER 31 13,082 12,268
Total equity FERAAER 1,659,803 1,639,726
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 24 April BEEH2009F 4 A 24 BHE A T o
2009.
Zeng Yunshu Zeng Sheng
ZER =1
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEFE HITEE
The notes on pages 65 to 152 form part of these financial statements. 2565 H 2 55 152 B /Y M 5% B A BF 75 3k A9 — 2B
4 o
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Balance Sheet EE & &%

At 31 December 2008 F —= \Fr=FA=1T—4H

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan) — (AN B

2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE ARET T ARBTIT
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K& 15 130 467
Interests in subsidiaries KB A Fl RS 16 1,087,055 909,353
_.....1,087185 909,820 _
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables H b FEUR 20 22,303 25,758
Pledged deposits EHRTIFR 22 31,849 164,406
Cash and cash equivalents B RBeEEY 23 28,161 122,935
I 82,313 313099 _
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals HAth TR R AR E 26 38,110 98,789
Net current assets neEE®E 44203 214310
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERRBEE 1,131,388 1,124,130
Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Interest-bearing borrowings SHEEE 24 519,725 555708
Net assets EEFE 611,663 568,422
Equity s
Share capital &N 10,296 10,296
Reserves i 601,367 558,126
Total equity e iA%E 31 611,663 568,422
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 24 April EEE@N2009F 4 A 24 BRUEWRRETEE -
2009.
Zeng Yunshu Zeng Sheng
CEE =1
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE

The notes on pages 65 to 152 form part of these financial statements. 2565 H X 5% 152 B &Y M 51 B A B 7 sk &) — 2B
% o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4R & 25 2 B &

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z —ZFEZENF+ _-A=1+—HIFFZ

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan)

Total equity at 1 January
Profit for the year

Total recognised income and
expense for the year

Attributable to:
— equity shareholders of the
company
— minority interests

Movements in equity arising
from capital transactions:

Shares issued pursuant to the
global offering and upon the
exercise of the over-allotment
option, net of share issuing
costs

Conversion of convertible note

Equity-settled share-based
payments

Shares issued under share option
scheme

Establishment of a subsidiary
in the PRC

Acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries

Total equity at 31 December

The notes on pages 65 to 152 form part of these financial statements.
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3]l

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AR¥TRT ARBTR AR®ETE
A . BMA3
3,360 250,502
— 3860 o ...250502
3,546 250,685
(186) (183)
3,360 250,502
- 465,599
- 117,624
15,717 44,727
- 2,531
1,000 -
- (85,680)
I L R e A
1,659,803 1,639,726
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement G 8B & HRE R

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
- interest income
— finance costs
- amortisation and depreciation
— loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
- net increase in fair value of
investment properties
- net change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments
- net realised and unrealised
losses/(gains) on trading
securities
— gain on disposal of a jointly
controlled entity
- equity-settled share-based payments
— impairment losses on trade and
other receivables
— dividend income
- net exchange gain

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables
Increase in prepaid land costs
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables, and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance
Increase in rental and other deposits

Cash used in operations

PRC income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &;% — 2

=/ \F7

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan)

(AN

= /7 /‘TﬁL:/_j’:ﬁ/LfE',L/fstt

7/

2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARETT AREFT
TEES
FR 758 A5 A 90,596 402,923
FRIER ¢
—FBHA 6 (26,640) (38,497)
—BERA 8(a) 90,227 55,091
—BERITE 8(c) 2,908 3,324
—HEWE  BEREE
B8, (k) 5 67 (83)
—REMENDRER
B0 17 (62,120) (180,352)
—TEERT AN
DRENEEFE (58,533) 28,182
—~EEZFNEERR
REBEE/ (Was) F58
5 3,097 (1,799)
—HE R BB
7 - (140,765)
— AR RAEE BRI 5K 30 15,717 44,727
— FEURBR S R EL A R R YR B 18 19,104 =
—BBA (24) _
—E 5 SR (55,966) -
SEESEHA
AR A 18,433 172,751
FEEM (352,706) (535,538)
e AR R R E At
FEMER ($E0) /R D (23,815) 9,709
TEfF LR AN - (132,776)
EREFORD, /(2 m) 116,587 (138,809)
FERTARR » HAEMA TR
FEIREBR (R) /1Em (40,526) 24,008
TEMERF I, O D) 51,442 (176,040)
HEREMZSIEM 185 174
SEHANES (230,400) (776,521)
B BAEH (12,632) (32,897)
RETHHANRSFE (243,032) (809,418)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement mMERE

= —TE)
Bl =</

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(Expressed in Renminbi Thousand Yuan)

_L+ /_J + /3/#4

F N A R M = =)
(AANEFE T8l )

7

B3R

2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FfE ARBTT ARBTT
Investing activities REEE
Expenditure on investment properties BEMENHZ 17 - (72,634)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE % - M= k& 15 (2,835) (4,814)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE « BER&E
plant and equipment {8 308 1 110
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WEEHE AR - HRESHIRS
cash acquired 38 (84,589) (88,487)
Acquisition of additional interests WEEH B A Rl RO BB SME 2
in subsidiaries - (85,680)
Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity llilﬁ%;i\ﬂt il Z e - (173,917)
Proceeds from disposal of a jointly HEHRIEHIEBREHIE
controlled entity - 314,682
Purchase of trading securities BABEZH (9,030) (2,830)
Proceeds from sale of trading securities & BEEAFTS7E 8,699 896
Interest received BEHFIE 20,861 38,497
Contribution by minority shareholder DERRLE 1,000 =
Dividend income B EMA 24 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHBHANESFE (65,859) . (74177)_
Financing activities Eﬂﬁ}iﬁ
Drawdown of bank loans RERITER 330,000 1,051,698
Repayment of bank loans Taﬁiﬁﬁ B3 (259,573) (732,001)
Repayment of loan note BEERER - (126,673)
Pledged deposits for long-term bank loans & Hi$R1TEFRHEIFFR - (10,053)
Proceeds from issuance of new shares ?’”‘ﬁ*ﬁﬂxﬂ’]?ﬁﬁ?ﬁl - 468,130
Proceeds from issuance of Senior Note ~ Z{TEBEZEMSHIE - 645,455
Interest paid ERHE (110,533) (40,814)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETE (BH)  EENESFE
financing activites (40,106) 1,255,742
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRBLZEMN CRD) SEIFER
cash equivalents (348,997) 372,147
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZ#E)H5/& (4,002) (6,586)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 18 1BMRERREZEY 397,101 31,540
Cash and cash equivalents at 12A31ANBRERASEEN
31 December 44,102 397,101
The notes on pages 65 to 152 form part of these financial statements. F65BEF 1652 BN B AN IS RE N —IB
5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (%5 &ATE9 XA ETIIR)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

EEEEME

Hong Long Holdings Limited is a company incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman lIslands. Its principal place of business
is at 8/F., Hong Long Building, Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, 518067, the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
has its registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEZEBRERATDR—RKNFEEEST
MR MAZ I REREORF - T2
EEURPEAREMBE(THE] R
JE L= 8K ERE K E8E (I
518067) + i =t it ## = & 2 W Cricket
Square ' Hutchins Drive * PO Box
2681 ' George Town ' Grand Cayman
KY1-1111 » the Cayman Islands °

EEE R BURBEH

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements are discussed
in note 3.

(a) EHIEH

ZEMBRRCRBEE SR
SRMANMAEERTEN KRS E
AT EEMBREER ) (REE
B BEMA ERER TSR
SEA - FEEHEA(FEES
ER D RBRE  BELERANE
R AR &E R BHEDIE BB EE R
HEFRE - AUMBHERITTAE
BBAERZAERARESF LM
AR R B EE 53 - TXEFIARE
B PTER AR E EEFTBOR -

BEGEEASEEME THE &
RIEFT 2 BBMBWELER - IR
AEERARANAEHHFER
AR SRR R o H )L ERZ
FHEAEEF O] RGBT E
AMELNARBEMNSHRRES
MERER I ER BRI AR -
W EE 3 7 A ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R = i sE

(B ZHHTE9) KA RIS T)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (=

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EE R BORBEE (8

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial statements is
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest
thousand yuan, which is the functional and reporting currency
of the group.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 comprise the company and its subsidiaries
(together with the company hereinafter referred to as the
“group”). It is prepared on the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 2(f));

- financial instruments classified as trading securities
(see note 2(d)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 40.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3% % ff&F

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 A AT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control
exists when the group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the company. Minority interests in the results of the
group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity shareholders
of the company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority's
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and
any further losses applicable to the minority, are charged
against the group’s interest except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make
additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the group’s interest is allocated
all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the group has been recovered.

(c)

BRI RS BRI ER

MEBAR TR AEEPTHEGIH AR
AR B ERE MR BNTER
SEBERANE BB IR A - Bl
ZHB AR RRIES - ERHEB L
BIRE RIS - B A TR E
FERERYIRERAER -

A — el B /B8 2 B B0 % & Th R 2 6 B
B E AR B ML
RANKRAMBHRET - KEAF]
BRERERZ Z AR EBARIER
SEENERREREFN - RRE
fRA MR R R - SEL
AR P EENERARERERIA
HBR 77 S A AR B IR U e (MR
IR EERAER) ©

PR RERRLIERERRES
(THEZLHREEBHELEF)
E R FE (G P B A B Y B B FHE AD
o Bt E - AEETREZSE
R A A E EEEIMER - A
BARSEERAAERMEBEMR
REMNANEME - PBRRERZ
IIRtRR EERBERANELR Y
D BBINARAERFEA
IR B » AR EEEND
LEBRERAESA BRERANE
NOET LB R EDE AQF
REE R A A #5 A ok E5 18 75 2 5
i
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3% [ 3%

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (K55 Fr#55)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

 AARETINT)

2

EE R BORBEE (8

(c)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Cont’d)

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 2(l), (m) or (n) depending on the nature of the liability.

In the company's balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The group’s and the company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in notes
2(s)(iii) and 2(s)(iv).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (%5 &ATE9 XA ETIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(f)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(s)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 2(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(h).

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is classified as investment property
under development and stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2(i)) until construction or development is
complete, at which time it is reclassified as investment
property at fair value. Any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

(f)

REME

BEMEBHEARBBEREERSF
B (RME2(h)) LABREAE © 4 A
R/ SKERNEBEN LR 5E
Fo BEEBHAETAKBEM
BHM L -

BEMEREERBRANURAE
FI(E - WEMERN AR EZ TR
38 ok i B P EE A (T R MR 25 SR S 48
HRBEFRER - REVENES
W AAR IR P = 2(s) (ii) AR BA A9 7 AT

st

= o

MEBBRBREEHERFYEER
AREUES WA KR EAEE
ZFE R R ER Y LS EN
SPARKEME - ERESIREKE
MERYERE R FRRE IR
AERERAHE (AR 20) - %
1 &5 P IE FR O & GBS R AR 1R
EMEMRMKRENERERE
R o HERFIZMEE 2(h) Pt

st

= o

BIEFBEERRTIRENENY)
¥ DoBRRBRTEREME A
VAR AR AR (DR BB 18 51 E (R
f2(0) EERERIRMETKAE
1k BRSSO BARIAET
ENREYE - ZWERNZ A HH
AR EEBERAENEZENER
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 Mt s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D)

2

FHEE BRI (A1)

(g)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see note
2(i)).

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the directors consider
impracticable to split the cost into leasehold land and
buildings; and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease
and their estimated
useful lives,

being no more

than 40 years

after the date

of completion

- Buildings situated on
leasehold land

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease
and their estimated
useful lives,

being no more

than 20 years

- Leasehold improvements

- Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and equipment
- Motor vehicles 5 years

Hong Long Holdings Limited 385 AR A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (%5 &ATE9 XA ETIIR)

E R BORBEE (87)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 2

(g)  Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd) (9) W% BERRZE (&)

2 - BB RRERE S
AIEAEHANE - %R B KRR
BREENSHYZEAE - B
DORITE - BENFEAFHR
HERiE (A ZFEH -

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(h) Leased assets (h) HEEE

(i) Classification of leased assets () HEEESHE
AEBMBEHAERENEE
i % R BB 5 BT A [ Bz E2 ]
e = ANEEE DIERE
MEHRERBEE - KX
B FrE Rk B O] 3R =
REEREERIIED L
BHE - AT :

Assets that are held by the group under leases which
transfer to the group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 2(f)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the group, or
taken over from the previous lessee, or at the
date of construction of those buildings, if later.

- REHESEBETHAN
ME ENERED
EWEE  BRER
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BME ERDER
REWE  BEAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R = i sE

(B ZHHTE9) KA RIS T)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (=

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2

EE R BORBEE (8

(h)

Leased assets (Cont’'d)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(i).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property (see note 2(f)).
Information on accounting policies for land held under
operating leases for development for sale is provided in
accounting policy note 2(j)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2 BHEEHBORBE ()

(h) Leased assets (Cont’'d)

(iv)

Amortisation of leasehold land

The cost of acquiring land held under operating leases
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. If the property is in the course of development,
the amortisation charge is included as part of the costs
of the property under development. In all other cases
the amortisation charge for the period is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Investments in trade and other current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R = i sE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 /A9 » XA EEITSR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 2 FHEFFIBORMEE ()
(i)  Impairment of assets (Cont’d) (i) BERMEGE)
(i) Impairment of receivables (Cont'd) (i) JENE R E (E)

74

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset's carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2 EREEFBORME ()

(i)  Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- investments in subsidiaries;

- property, plant and equipment; and

- properties for future development and under
development for sale.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 Mt s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 2  FEGEIEORME ()
()  Impairment of assets (Cont’d) (i) EEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont'd) (i)  HEuEELE (&)

Recognition of impairment losses R AR

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or HWEEXKEMBRE

loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset, EAEMHEREmER

or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, WER UG S R

exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment BEREBEANER P

losses recognised in respect of cash-generating FUREER - MBS E

units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount HEBUERZBEE

of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a BRI EERE

pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of AN (SR ENMAR)

an asset will not be reduced below its individual RYEDEE AR D %S

fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if BEMERE: HE

determinable. ERAEBETERE
EREER AR ER
HERANEREEB
(4nrlEERE) °

Reversals of impairment losses B EIREEE

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been MR AEEE AT Y E

a favourable change in the estimates used to SHEMNMEETHE

determine the recoverable amount. EEZL  BEEE
EgRm -

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to FFr 48 151 89 5 (B 5 1R {2

the asset's carrying amount that would have BRWBEEERE

been determined had no impairment loss R AR B S 18 T

been recognised in prior years. Reversals of EUAEBEEMNEER®T

impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in B - FT# [0 BB E5 18

the year in which the reversals are recognised. ERRBENFEER
ABEA o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(i)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories in respect of property development activities are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, except for
the land portion which is accounted for as set out in note 2(h)
(iv). Cost and net realisable values are determined as follows:

(i) Properties for future development and under
development for sale

The cost of properties for future development and
under development for sale comprises specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses and
borrowing costs capitalised (see note 2(u)). Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

(ii) Completed properties held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the
group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less costs
to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the properties to
their present location and condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3% [ 3%

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (K55 Fr#55)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

 AARETINT)

2

EE R BORBEE (8

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the company that will be settled by
other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
company’'s own equity instruments is a derivative financial
instrument. Warrants classified as a derivative financial
instrument are recognised at their fair values at the date
of issue. Changes in fair values in subsequent periods are
recognised through profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities, measured in
accordance with note 2(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, annual bonuses and staff welfare are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the group. \Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

= B A1)

F UARHBITTIT)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(p) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(ii)

(ifi)

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour
rules and regulations in the PRC are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred, to the extent
that they are not capitalised as properties under
development for sale.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using a valuation technique,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3% [ 3%

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (K55 Fr#55)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

 AARETINT)

2

EE R BORBEE (8

(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arsing from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2 BHEEHBORBE ()

(q)

Income tax (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 M=

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 2  FHEGEIHCRME (&)
(q) Income tax (Cont'd) (q) FrB%i (&)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and NEARIIHARRIRERIBES - &
movements therein, are presented separately from each HEFHEBE BN TR A FHE
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against i AHIFIBEERELEHBAE
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred REeERRNRSANEBEEEITE
tax liabilities, if the company or the group has the legally AN IEEERE AR IES

82

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
company or the group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 BH#55) + U EEETIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(r)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

(r)  FABHMBBER  EERIRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} & 3R 3% [ 3E

 AARETINT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 Ar#55)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(r)

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Cont’d)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the group and the company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i)

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised in
profit or loss when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The
group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the properties
are completed and delivered to the buyers. Revenue
from sale of properties excludes business tax and
other sales related taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the balance sheet as receipts in
advance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned. Revenue excludes business tax or
other sales related taxes.

(i) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R = i sE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 Ar#55)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

* UABRBTTIT)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the group or
exercise significant influence over the group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the group;

(i) the group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the group or a joint venture
in which the group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel of
the group or the group's parent, or a close family member
of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the group or of any entity
that is a related party of the group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (%5 &Fr#55)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

KUARBTST)

2  EHEEHIBORME (5)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Cont’d)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the group that
is engaged either in providing projects or services (business
segment), or in providing projects or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the group’s internal financial reporting
system, the group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% Mt st

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (kx5 &A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

At R T

The HKICPA has issued a number of new Interpretations and an
amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the group and the company. However, none of these
developments are relevant to the group’s or the company's financial
position or results of operations.

The group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 41).

TURNOVER

EEGMASERE BV B IS LR
WA THRER -HER 2528
RIEFTTRAREE R AR RO A S HRE
BREM - A ZEBRREREE LK
X B Y B A RO AR S R A A
R -

REEIWEERNA S B AR ER
A ERFTER R (R 41) -

eS|

The principal activities of the group are property development and
property leasing in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties and rental
income and management fee earned during the year net of business
tax and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed, after
eliminating intra-group transactions.

AEENEZXRBHETBEEEY XA
BEMEME -

EXBAERHEEERNLERHRNAF
EANHEENEBARBES KA RERE
BEREA (BMREXRTREMHEBR
BIE R HTH) °

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Sales of properties HEME 64,147 362,933
Rental income and management fee HeWAREEER 55,481 48,744
119,628 411,677
5  OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSS) Hebzs(EH) S5
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE R

plant and equipment e (E1E) ek (67) 83

Net realised and unrealised EEFRAFNEFR R
(losses)/gains on trading securities KRB (F8) W F5E (3,097) 1,799
Net exchange gains/(losses) [E HUes/ (B51R) F 5 40,261 (26,490)
37,097 (24,608)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

6  OTHER REVENUE 6  HALA
2008 2007
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Ff3E ARET T ARETT
Interest income FEMA 26,640 38,497
Compensation income on cancellation of T BRI
swap agreement BEEUWA 24 (b) 27,994 =
Others Hth 857 1,979
55,491 40,476
7  GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 7 WEILEEHEERS
On 9 November 2007, the group disposed of its 50% equity interest R2007F 11 A9H  ANEE R B E
in Trisum Investment Limited (“Trisum”) to an independent third —HHEERERLERARAG(NE
party for a consideration of RMB314,682,000. Trisum was acquired by ) BB0% AR REAARK
the group in August 2007 for a consideration of RMB150,000,000. A 314,682,000 7T ° &)X A A & B 72 2007
gain of RMB140,765,000 resulted in the disposal. F8H MUKE AR 150,000,000 7T 4

BE - HEWES A AR 140,765,000 7T °

8  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8  FRBiHTE A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREADEFE MR (GEA) ¢
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT
(a)  Finance costs (@)  BEHT
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings BRAFAZEEENRT
wholly repayable within five years ERREMEETE 46,314 20,488
Interest on Senior Note BEZEHNE 89,813 65,668
Total interest expense on financial liabilities WIEE BB A AR BT
not at fair value through profit or loss HemaENTISBREE 136,127 86,156
Less: interest expense capitalised as W MBBRENMEA
properties under development for sale * FHEMBREAME (45,900) (31,065)
90,227 55,091
@ The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates 2 BERAE 5 RFEMNENF5.18%
ranging from 5.18% to 9.07% per annum (2007: from 5.10% %9.07% (2007 F : 4 F| £510% =
0 8.22% per annum). 8.22%) FLAA AL o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} & 3R 3% [ 3E

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (f+5&AT#55) » XA KBTS R)

i A5t i v A (A5

8  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 8

BBANENE MR, GEA) ()

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont'd)

90

2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
(o) Staff costs b) EBIE&

Equity-settled share-based payments* AR m4E E AR 8
(note 30) IR * (Bf7E30) 342 29,352
Wages, salaries and other staff costs TE - HFEREMBEIAAR 17,859 13,510
18,201 42,862

Including: BE

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 839 505

Employees of the group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The group’s subsidiaries contribute funds which
are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee
salary as agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
The group made contributions of RMB795,000 (2007:
RMB471,000) to the scheme during the year.

The group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the group and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The group made contributions of RMB44,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$49,000) (2007: RMB34,000)
to the scheme during the year.

The group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond
the annual contributions described above.

* Equity-settled share-based payments for the group’s employees

were included under general and administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

8  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 8  BRBiErEAl (4)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont'd) BRAEMEING S GEA) : (&)
2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTT AR¥ETTT

(c)  Other items (o) EmEA
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE b5 1,268 2,261
Less: amounts capitalised as B SEERNMEA
properties under FHENEE
development for sale ke - (977)
oo M268 1,284
Depreciation nE 2,544 2,040
Less: amounts capitalised as B SEERNMEA
properties under FHENEE
development for sale k7ES (904) =
I V- 2,040 __
Total amortisation and depreciation R R ITE 2,908 3,324
Auditor’s remuneration (e Gl
— audit services — Bz RS 1,592 2,015
- other services —H A ARES 533 330
Operating lease charges in respect of IR
sub-leased properties HEEH 10,082 9,915
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 57,240 161,261
Impairment losses on loans and advances ERRBFRERE 15,920 =
Impairment losses on prepayments T FOREEE 3,184 =
Rental income from investment properties REMERESIA (39,542) (33,397)
Rental income from sub-leased properties EEYERESIA (15,939) (15,347)
Gross rental income FEVIEEALON (55,481) (48,744)
Less: direct outgoings (note) W BERSE () 16,476 15,733
(39,005) (83,011)
Contingent rental income AR IA (319) (618)
Note: Direct outgoings represent operating lease charges in respect Mzt : BRI IEEHENELCEHER
of sub-leased properties and management fee expenses. AREEERX -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R = i sE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5HAT#E5) + XA RETTSR)

S

9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 9 HEEBBRENR AR
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HFEBRERAMBTIEE:
represents:
2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Current tax S EABTE
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax ANGE B3
for the year st 16,069 . 41,822
Land Appreciation Tax B ER
— Provision for the year —FREH 328 98,291
— Overprovision in respect of prior year ~ — EFEBEA%ERE (989) -
S (661) ________ 98,291 __
L 15398 . 140,113 __
Deferred tax IEIERITE
Origination and reversal of temporary TR ERAELE RER
differences 5,757 12,308
Effect of changes in tax rate on RSB HVIRERHIBE S
opening deferred tax balances 0)-Z-
66,081 -
S 71,838 . 12,308 __
87,236 152,421

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as the group
does not have estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on a
statutory rate of 25% of the taxable profits determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations
in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries of the company located within the special
economic zones in the PRC, which were previously taxed
at preferential rate of 15% in 2007, for which the applicable
preferential tax rate is 18% for 2008. The preferential tax rate
will be gradually increased to 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% for
the years ending 31 December 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively. Accordingly, the deferred tax of the group is
recognised based on tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 BHT#55) + A EETTHR)

9  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 9 HEAHEIFXANNER ()
(ConT’D)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HFREBRERRAMBEE: (&)

represents: (Cont’d)

Land Appreciation Tax is levied on properties developed by AEBEHEMBEROYERILZ T
the group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% EEEIEA30% £60% N REF
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the TN+ W IRET - BRIBEAES
applicable regulations is calculated based on the proceeds Bl - IR ER TR B E M ERS
of sales of properties less deductible expenditure including HRERANRAS (BELER
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all BHHESH - BERARFIEME
property development expenditure. BRMAX)FH -
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense and (b) WEABETEMNRER HESH
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: A HVE AR
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBFT ARBTT

Profit before taxation BR A A V5 A 90,596 402,923
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LRIEI T 18%

calculated at 18% (2007: 15%) (2007 £F : 15% ) sTEHIBRBIAT

in Shenzhen i EOEZE= 257 16,307 60,438
Effect of changes in tax rate on RSB YRR IE

opening deferred tax balances ERr e 66,081 =
Tax effect of different tax rates FEEMARF X MR A

in other locations HIEXE 1,486 3,341
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AR AT IEZ 2 (1,965) (63)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B E 2 4,365 4,498
Tax effect of unused tax RTAERTIEEIERERN

losses not recognised HETE 1,484 660
Land Appreciation Tax T HIRER (661) 83,547
Others Efth 139 -
Actual tax expense BERRIE L 87,236 152,421
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% Mt st

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (kx5 &A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr Yunshu ZENG
Mr Sheng ZENG
Ms Qingdong YE
Mr Junxin OUYANG
Dr Qinchun HAN
Mr Yiyan ZHANG

(appointed on

6 October 2008)

Independent non-
executive directors

DrdunlLl
Mr Ngai Lam CHEUNG
Ms Wei Fang LIN
(resigned on
6 October 2008)
Mr Fosong WANG
(appointed on
6 October 2008)

Non-executive
director

Mr Huagiao ZHANG
(resigned on
26 September 2008)

HiTES

YEREE

BELE

EERLL

BB hHEE

BRERL
(R2008510 A6 BEZ(T)

BUFHTES

ZREL
FRMEE
WERRL
(BR 2008410 A6 BEHE)

THREE
(2008410 A6 BEZ)

FHTES

RMeERE
(B 200849 A 26 BEHT)

Hong Long Holdings Limited JBE$= R GFR A A
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10 FHFME
RETBAAEDIE 161 GRIBEBENES
Mo :
Basic salaries,
housing
allowances
and other
allowances
and benefits
inkind Retirement Equity-settled
EXge scheme share-based
Directors’  [E/E385 + Discretionary contributions payments 2008
fees EMZER bonuses Bk Subtotal URAALE Total
B5pe  BUEN  RMER4 GEAR Ait EENAR &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note)
i)
1,500 - - 21 1,521 - 1,521
1,300 - - 20 1,320 - 1,320
600 - - 20 620 - 620
300 - - 15 315 - 315
1,300 - - " 1,31 - 1,311
325 - - - 325 - 325
5325 - - 87 5412 - 5412
133 - - - 133 - 133
133 - - - 133 - 133
100 - - - 100 - 100
30 - - - 30 - 30
3% - - - 3% - 396




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D) 10 EFME (5)
Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIBEB R AERIE 161 IKFTIRENE S
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Cont'd) e - (&)
Basic salaries,
housing
allowances
and other
allowances
and benefits
in kind Retirement Equity-settled
el scheme share-based
Directors': /228 +  Discretionary  contributions payments 2007

fees  EtEAR bonuses pid/ Subtotal SR BEE Total

BEe  EMET  BMERA  GEER Ait ERMAR 5]

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note)

(Bits2)
Executive directors
Mr Yunshu ZENG LEEEE 1,500 - - 19 1519 - 1519
Mr Sheng ZENG BREE 1,299 - - 9 1,308 - 1,308
Ms Qingdong YE EERut 600 - - 9 609 3,882 4491
Mr Junxin OUYANG B e 300 - - 6 306 1,553 1,859
Dr Qinchun HAN BRERT 1,192 - - 11 1,203 - 1,203
4,891 - - 54 4,945 5,435 10,380
Independent non- BUKHTES
executive directors
Drun LI B3 133 - - - 133 475 608
Mr Ngai Lam CHEUNG RRMEE 133 - - - 133 475 608
Ms Wei Fang LIN WEFLL 133 - - - 133 475 608
399 - - - 399 1,425 1,824
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr Huagiao ZHANG e T m . . . m 3281 3,3%5
Mr Junyu CHEN RERLE
(resigned on (212007410 A 16 BEHE)
16 October 2007) 36 - - - 36 - 36
80 - - - 80 3,281 3,361
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3% Mt st

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (kx5 &A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D) 10 EFEME (H)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIBFARAEHIE 161 IFFTIRENES

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Cont'd) e - (8)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the MisE : ZEREREBREBEA AR RRES SR T
directors under the company’s share option scheme. The value of BENRARENGEE - ZSRME
these share options is measured according to the group’s accounting HEEDBRBERNEEEEURG BEE
policies for equity-settled share-based payments as set out in note ERANRR S EETBUER (1AM 2(p)
2(p)(iii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to (iii) Frk) 5t 2 - MARRFZIUR © 2155t
reserve amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity A 5F B AR W/ BT 3% (AR AR T AL #¢ o)
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting. BAEFEERIIBENHARE -

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and BRZEEWMERMNNFE (BEMEY

number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share RRENEZERREE) DEBERNE

option” in the directors’ report and note 30. EeRE [RRE | —BRRME30-
11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 mEe At

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2007: hAEZmReMEALTZF  HRENHA

two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The (2007 : M) RES - EME RN

aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining (2007: 10 - HHp—E (2007F : =%) AL
three) individual is as follows: KR T -
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFT ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments e REMME 1,067 1,354
Discretionary bonuses BIESEAL - 512
Equity-settled share-based payments VARG 7 £ 45 B LR A TR - 10,350
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 11 28
1,078 12,244
96 Hong Long Holdings Limited S8R AR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 35 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EETIR)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 11 HEe ANt (&)
The emolument of the individual (2007: three) with the highest H#—R(2007F  Z2)BleZaHA
emolument is within the following band: THMSEERT :

Number of individuals

EERE
2008 2007
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR 1,000,001 TE
AR # 2,000,000 7T 1 -
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR 2,000,001 TR
AR # 2,500,000 7T - 1
RMB3,500,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR 3,500,001 TR
AR # 4,000,000 7T - 1
RMB6,000,001 to RMB6,500,000 AER#6,000,001 TTE
AR 6,500,000 7T - 1
During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no H Z 20084 [ 2007 12 A31 B LW 1E
emoluments have been paid by the group to the directors, senior FERN AEEREMES  SRTHK
executives or any of the five highest individuals as an inducement to AB MR L &S H MO AT
join or upon joining the group or as compensation for loss of office. © ERAWRSIEEMAREE LR MA
7N 55 B e A SR B ol B BBk A 1 o
12 PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 12 A 2 A HE 2 OB R BE fh
COMPANY %U/( Ejﬁ )
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders ARAREZREEGGZEEET(BE)
of the company includes a profit of RMB27,524,000 (2007: loss B AR 27,524,000 7T 894 F (2007
of RMB62,110,000) which has been dealt with in the financial F: AR¥62,110,000 TEE) @ ZEHE
statements of the company. BERARE I SRR ERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B & 3R = i sE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (r5HAT#E5) + UA R TTSR)

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 HREH
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the ERERNBANDRBERF
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company of ERAADA EZKSEEMNS
RMB3,546,000 (2007: RMB250,685,000) and the weighted F A R ¥ 3,546,000 7T (2007 4F :
average number of shares in issue during the year of A R #250,685,0007C ) © M &
1,040,250,000 (2007: 1,036,325,000). The weighted average RAFEERNEEITRMD A INE
number of shares in issue for the period from 1 January F5%81,040,250,000% (2007 4F :
2007 to 12 March 2007 is based on the assumption that 1,036,325,000 §% ) 5F & - (32007
1,036,100,000 ordinary shares were in issue throughout that F1H1HE20074F3A8 128 LHME
period. NEBETROBMEFHET

BEBINZBBAC T
1,036,100,000 f& @A M & -

Weighted average number of shares (basic) BRI IHEF19 2 ()
2008 2007
‘000 ‘000
T T %
Number of shares at 1 January W1 A1 BERNEE 1,040,250 1,036,100
Effect of share options exercised BITERRENE - 225
Weighted average number 12 A 31 B AR hnte 392k
of shares at 31 December 1,040,250 1,036,325
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHZF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the ERESTBADBEARR A
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company % 3R FE A& V5 A A R ¥ 3,546,000 7T
of RMB3,546,000 (2007: RMB250,685,000) and the (20074 : AR#250,685,0007T)
weighted average number of shares of 1,048,475,000 (2007: K &t hn# - 35 221,048,475,000
1,060,772,000) shares, calculated as follows: f% (2007 4 : 1,060,772,000 A% ) 5T

BoBERMT

Weighted average number of shares (diluted) BRI INEF1 2 (&)
2008 2007
‘000 ‘000
T T
Number of shares at 1 January ®1 A1 BEMRGHEE 1,040,250 1,036,100
Deemed issue of ordinary shares AR AR IR R AT &
under share option scheme for EERTLER
nil consideration 8,225 24,672
Weighted average number of shares 12 A 31 B AR hnsE 39 £
at 31 December 1,048,475 1,060,772
98 Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

13  EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D) 13 FREF (5H)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Cont’d) (b) BTREHRF (&)
For the Warrants granted during 2007 (note 24(b)), there 2007 F &% H & R A% (R
was no dilutive effect on earnings per share upon deemed 24(b)) T @ IR AITERI &
exercise. The then status of condition was assumed HERABFEEEETE - AA7A
unchanged and thus the conditions of reset and adjustment R E R AR R TE - A
were not met. W HEE B E R M 2 5 -
14 SEGMENT REPORTING 14 ZrEpHEE
Segment information is presented in respect of the group’s DEERERAEENEE RES L2
business and geographical segments. Business segment Bl o AT EBE #H LA K B /R 3
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because BERER AERE  ALEFSBER
this is more relevant to the group’s internal financial reporting. WERTEREFRN - BRAEEHNE
No segment information is presented in respect of the group’s DEBRZRPELE  BWHESBE
geographical segments as the group's principal activities are largely FHEAS BRI E S EET)

carried out in the PRC.

Business segments ESSarl

The group comprises the following main business segments: REBE R T EZEXE D FRAER :

= Property development : development and sale of —  YERE : REREEWE
properties

= Property leasing . leasing of investment properties — YHEHEE @ HEREVER
and sub-leased properties and SR RIR M
provision of related BT ERS

management service
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3% [ 3%

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AT#55) » AA KBTS R)

14 A (4)

14  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D)

100

Business segments (Cont'd) EK D (&)
Property Property
development leasing Consolidated
LY E Sk MERE nEe
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Year ended 31 December 2008 HZ2008F 12 A31HILFE
Revenue from external customers  JMNEREFUA 64,147 55,481 119,628
Segment results DEbELE 5,148 35,537 40,685
Net increase in fair value REMERN DR ER
of investment HEANFEE
properties - 62,120 62,120
Unallocated operating income REED TS
and expenses WA KA 19,485
Profit from operations K A 122,290
Net change in fair value PTESRIARN
of derivative ARENEE)FEE
financial instruments 58,533
Finance costs REE R (90,227)
Profit before taxation FR A5 A g A 90,596
Income tax FriS it (87,236)
Profit for the year NEE R 3,360
Amortisation and depreciation BIERITE 2,068 500
At 31 December 2008 7200812 H31H
Segment assets DELE EE 2,280,536 1,324,539 3,605,075
Unallocated assets REED TN EE 219,235
Total assets BEE 3,824,310
Segment liabilities SEaE 405,960 48,248 454,208
Unallocated liabilities ReED ARG 1,710,299
Total liabilities BweE 2,164,507
Capital expenditure incurred FIEARMEARS 729,222 536

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

14 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’D) 14 Ay (8)
Business segments (Cont’d) ¥ DI (&)
Inter-
segment
Property Property elimination
development leasing 282 Consolidated
L EE LEZEN I sE e

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREBTR ARBTR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2007 HZE2007F12 A3 BLEEE
Revenue from external customers IMREFIA 362,933 48,744 = 411,677
Segment results DR 197,424 25,912 = 223,336
Net increase in fair value of BEMEN AR EN

investment properties EIEER - 180,352 = 180,352
Unallocated operating income REED TR E

and expenses WA RFX 82,508
Profit from operations R A 486,196
Net change in fair value of TESRTAN

derivative financial DA EMEE)FEE

instruments (28,182)
Finance costs AR A (55,091)
Profit before taxation Bt AT A 402,923
Income tax FiEH (152,421)
Profit for the year REERA 250,502
Amortisation and depreciation BERITE 2,835 426
At 31 December 2007 #2007F12831H
Segment assets DEEE 1,485,954 1,318,871 (42,013) 2,762,812
Unallocated assets REEDEMEE 769,243
Total assets BEE 3,532,055
Segment liabilities DEEE 236,819 174,380 (42,013) 369,186
Unallocated liabilities REEDEMEE 1,523,143
Total liabilities BEE 1,892,329
Capital expenditure incurred FEEREARTH 572,503 73,114
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y3 ~ W Mok
The group
rEE
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor
#{EBA  improvements e £E vehicles Total
BF HEEE REfE AE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARET T ARETT ARET T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2008 #2008F1A1H 3,470 3,852 3,448 6,335 17,105
Acquired from a subsidiary B—fMEARES - - 42 1,096 1,138
Additions R - 401 331 2,103 2,835
Disposals T - - - (189) (189)
At 31 December 2008 2008 12A31E 3470 4283 381 9345 | 20,889
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At 1 January 2008 #2008F1A1H (910) (1,780) (1,345) (3,298) (7,333)
Acquired from a subsidiary B—fAMEARES - - (3) (67) (70)
Charge for the year AEEHE (175) (591) (636) (1,142) (2,544)
Written back on disposal HE R - - - m M
At 31 December 2008 #2008F 12 A31H (1088 23717 | (1984)  (43%) (9,836)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2008 R 2008F 12 A31H 2,385 1,882 1,837 4,949 11,053
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 15 M3 - W= Bt (88)
The group
AEE
Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
own use Leasehold equipment Motor
H{EEA  improvements HE- KB vehicles Total
BF HEXE R qE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2007 ®2007F1 818 3,470 2,227 1,579 4,267 11,643
Acquired from subsidiaries BB ARES - - 828 540 1,368
Additions R - 1,625 1,041 2,148 4814
Disposals T - - - (620) (620)
At 31 December 2007 M2007F12A318 3470 ¢ 382 348 633%6 17,106
Accumulated depreciation: e
At 1 January 2007 ®2007F1 818 (738) (1,250) (887) (2,5623) (5,398)
Acquired from subsidiaries BB ARES - - (116) (372) (488)
Charge for the year AEEHE (172) (530) (342) (996) (2,040)
Written back on disposal &R R - - - 593 593
At 31 December 2007 M2007F 128318 @0 1780 (1,345) (3298 (7,333
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2007 #2007F12 A31 A 2,560 2,072 2,103 3,037 9,772
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 Mt s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 15 W ~ W Mk (48)
The company
RAF]
Leasehold
improvements
HEEE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2007 720071 A1H -
Additions hE 530
At 31 December 2007 $2007 512 A31H B30
At 1 January 2008 ® 200841418 530
Additions NE -
At 31 December 2008 720085 12 A 31 H o _____...530__
Accumulated depreciation: HEHE -
At 1 January 2007 720071 A1 H -
Charge for the year AEEHE (63)
At 31 December 2007 2007128180 63)__
At 1 January 2008 ® 200841418 (63)
Charge for the year REERE (337)
At 31 December 2008 2008128180 (400)__
Net book value: BREDVFE :
At 31 December 2008 ® 2008412 A31H 130
At 31 December 2007 2007 F12 A31H 467
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

16  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 HABRE 2w B RE 25
The company
VYN
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ETT AR¥ETTT

Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE © TBAKA 80,082 80,082
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B~ R FRIE 1,007,534 829,832
Less: impairment loss on amounts e NG E O]

due from subsidiaries EOpEREY St (561) (561)

1,087,055 909,353
Except for an amount of RMB265,236,000 (2007: RMB40,234,000) —% A R# 265,236,000 7T (2007 4F :
which is interest-bearing at the 1-year RMB benchmark lending rate AR¥ 40,234,000 70) FIBILHE A RIR
as determined from time to time by the People’s Bank of China TEFETHETH —FHARBEERE
per annum, the balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- HEF R BN - BEHE A A8 AR T
free, and repayable on demand. These balances are expected to be B RERBREREER ZEHEHR
recovered after more than one year. TEHR —FEKE -
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TRESVNEBEZEAEEHESE BE
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the group. MEBENKMBRARMNGFE KREEHHA
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. G TR E RGO ER AT @R -
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Annual Report 2008 —Z& )\ FEE 3R



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7% 3R 3 Mt s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

16  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 16 B AT KRS (4)
Percentage
Place of Issued/ of equity

Name of incorporation/ Place of paid up attributable Principal Legal

company establishment operation capital to the company activities form

NEIEHE SEMARSL AL B A B BT/ BHER AQEEEEZESL FEEHR SEEFR

Direct  Indirect
HiZ =3
% %

Access The British Shenzhen, US$10,000 100 - Investment  Private
Achievement Virgin Islands the PRC 10,00037T holding limited
Limited REBREZHS BRI BB liability

company
ThA
BERAT]

Hong Long Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB299,000,000 - 100 Property Wholly
Properties the PRC the PRC AR # 299,000,000 7T develop- foreign-
(Shenzhen) HEDRYI BRI ment and owned
Company property enter-
Limited investment  prise

W E ORI MERE HEEE
BRAR RyERE B

Shenzhen Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB28,000,000 - 86 Property Limited
Yinghua the PRC the PRC AR 28,000,000 7T develop- liability
Development el BRI ment company
Company b Ek BRAT
Limited

RYIREEE
BERBRAR

Huizhou Huizhou, Huizhou, RMB20,000,000 - 100 Property Limited
Yintaida the PRC the PRC AR 20,000,000 7T develop- liability

Company BN BTN ment company
Limited YRR BERAT]

BN IRGE
BEXBRAA

Shenzhen Shenzhen, Shenzhen, RMB10,680,000 - 100 Property Limited
Hong Long the PRC the PRC  AR® 10,680,000 7C leasing liability
Commercial el BRI and sub- company
Management leasing BRAT
Company YERE
Limited EETE

R T IBRE P 5
ERERATR
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

16  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’ D)

16 Bt Eg 2w R 2 (48)

Name of
company

NEEH

Zhangjiakou
Centre Way
Real Estate
Development
Company
Limited

RXAFE
FEiERME
BRAT]

Meizhou
Hong Long
Shi Ye
Company
Limited

1EMNEEEXER

NG

Xingning
Hong Long
Property
Development
Company
Limited
FEEH
BRAR]

Shenzhen
City Zirui
Real Estate
Development
Company
Limited

R EIRE HE

FHEERATA

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

Place of
operation

SRR BRI E

Hebei,
the PRC
B L

Meizhou,
the PRC
BN

Meizhou,
the PRC
alEiisg

Shenzhen,
the PRC
alEipSl

Hebei,
the PRC
L

Meizhou,
the PRC
B

Meizhou,

Issued/
paid up
capital

B8/ EHEX

HK$20,000,000
20,000,000 7T

RMB5,000,000
AR#5,000,0007T

RMB221,990,926

the PRC AR#221,990,926 7T

FR N

Shenzhen,

RMB21,000,000

the PRC  AE#21,000,0007C

HERY

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the company
AAREGRERDLL
Direct  Indirect
Hi Gl
% %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 ER A

Principal
activities

EBREK

Property
develop-
ment

LESGES

Property
develop-
ment

LESGES

Property
develop-
ment

ESGES

Property
develop-
ment

LESGES

Legal
form

SRR

Wholly
foreign-
owned
enter-
prise

I EBE
%

Limited
liability
company

BRAT]

Wholly
foreign-
owned
enter-
prise

SEBE
%

Limited
liability
company

BRAT]
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (K55 Fr#55)

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

 AARETINT)

17

BEY =

At 1 January ®1A1R
Additions nE

Net increase in fair value N EEINFRE
At 31 December W12 A31H

(a)

(b)

(c)

All investment properties of the group were revalued as at 31
December 2008 by an independent firm of surveyors, Knight
Frank Petty Limited, who has among their staff Fellows of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of properties being valued, on an
open market value basis calculated by reference to the net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

The analysis of fair value of investment properties is as
follows:

In PRC, held on leases of
—over 50 years
— between 10 and 50 years

— BB 50 F
—10FEL0F

Investment properties leased out under operating leases

The group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases. Except that certain leases are with no
specific terms, all other leases run for an initial period of
one to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease after
that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31
December 2008.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties are
classified as investment properties.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(a)

(b)

(c)

The group

AEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBF T AREFT
1,257,486 1,004,500
- 72,634
62,120 180,352
1,319,606 1,257,486

REEFBIREYHEI20084F 12
A31BE B#EAHHEEMEL
B REEA SRS SR A
ZedreERESNELASM
THESAETRITT A R A AR R AR
MSEELXERS WA FEL T K
AEEERBAER -

REMENRAEDHUT -

The group
AEE

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBF T AREFT
1,279,916 1,210,506
39,690 46,980
1,319,606 1,257,486

RELEHEHBENRENHE

AERRBELEHENES TRE
W% o BE T AL EEE FR
SN FEEMEONZH A —=
“HERRZBKTERER - T
[E RSP BRI B o 1
2008 12 H31 H » ZZHEHT
EEREREE -

MAEMFEREEERERSE XA
EEMSTEANERENERTER
BEREEEME -




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 3% M=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17 #EWE(H)

(d)  The group’s total future minimum lease payments under non- (d) FEEREFAIMBBROCEHAEN
cancellable operating leases from investment properties are REVETHERERNRERER
receivable as follows: HAAZEWNT ¢

The group
REE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ETT AR¥ETTT

Within 1 year —FR 36,119 36,089

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR 124,817 129,719

After 5 years hFEE 250,417 303,951

411,353 469,759
(e)  Asat 31 December 2008, certain investment properties of the (e) M2008F12A31H  AEBEET
group were pledged against bank loans granted to the group BEMEEBERRAEBRITER
and details of which are set out in note 25. B 2R - BRAFBEEHNMIEE25 -

18 TRADING SECURITIES 18 HE®&EHR
The group
AEEH
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBFT ARETT

Trading securities BEEFS
Listed equity securities, EREIN EMRE (FETE)

outside Hong Kong (at market value) 240 3,733
Unlisted fund (note) FEEmES (KisE) 727 -

967 3,733
Note: The amount is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy BaE - RS RIRBAMBRME2(d) TS
set out in note 2(d) to these financial statements. STBURT AR ©
Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 ER A 109
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

19 INVENTORIES 19 &8
The group
AEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Properties for future development AR R
and under development for sale RERPYHE 1,586,210 927,176
Completed properties held for sale FEHERNE R Ty 16,242 5,684
1,602,452 932,860
(a)  The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in (a) PREEHLERKRHAZRERTY
properties for future development and under development for (¥RBEHENER ITMERNNTE
sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows: ETHEREEEITEOT ¢
The group
AEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
In PRC, held on leases of FE - ARHSFREE
— over 50 years — BB 50 F 200,823 67,811
— between 10 and 50 years —105ZE50%F 4,141 4,232
204,964 72,043
()  The amount of properties for future development and under (b) TEEARBMA— G LAE 5 AT IR MY
development for sale expected to be recovered after more ERRABRERTMENSTED
than one year is analysed as follows: AT -
The group
AEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Properties for future development AR R
and under development for sale RER P 910,072 141,197
All of the other inventories are expected to be recovered FEEMETEERPIE-—FRE
within one year. B o
(c) As at 31 December 2008, certain properties for future (c) M2008%F12A31H FFHHE
development and under development for sale were pledged KRR R BERPYERBIERSE
against bank loans granted to the group and details of which BEERRITERNERRD - 5FEH
are set out in note 25. BT EE25 ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND PREPAID LAND 20  JEWCHR w3k B At FE ek 0 KT
COSTS i} 1 Ho g AR
The group The company
REE ARAE
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARBTRT ARETR

Trade receivables (note (a)) FEUBR TR (Bt 3E (a) 10,130 8,821 = =
Other receivables H A fEWR 96,075 80,552 = =
Loans and advances (note (b)) B R (A b) 89,883 179,106 22,303 24,358
Amount due from a related company ~ JEUR—RIREE D FIERK

(note (c)) (Fif5E () 30,833 = = =

Loans and receivables B R EMR 226,921 268,479 22,303 24,358

Derivative financial instruments (note 21) /T4 &8 T & (FizE21) - 1,400 - 1,400

Prepayments SN 301,565 249,427 = =

Total trade and other receivables JE U BR SR e L fth FE W R 48 KR 528,486 519,306 22,303 25,758

Prepaid land costs (note (d)) TEAF At AN (R EE (o) 219,549 220,620 = =

748,035 739,926 22,303 25,758

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered T8 HA BT 7 FE K BR SR % L b FE U K3 A —

within one year. FRUE -

(a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (a)  FEURERFNE & HOFE IR AR 3R K H A fE
with the following ageing analysis as at the balance sheet WA - EREEBERANIRE
date: DHTAT -

The group
AEE
2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBFT ARETIT

0 to 3 months 0E31AA 9,514 8,368
More than 3 months but less HBB31EA

than 6 months BAR6MEA 159 73
More than 6 months but less iR 6 & A

than 1 year BLR14E 8 380
Over 1 year HiA15F 449 _

10,130 8,821
Trade receivables are due within 3 months from the date of EWEFNEEFHBAZIMEAR
billing. No impairment loss on trade receivables has been EIHY o ANFE RIBEFE I MmBLE
provided for the current and prior years. WBR FOR B BB TR 2ER -
The group’s credit policy is set out in note 32(a). AEBEREEBRSE N ES2() ©
Hong Long Holdings Limited B[R A R A 7 111
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND PREPAID LAND COSTS 20 Eq&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&;ﬁ\:'ﬂﬁ}@ I’I&%ﬁ 2 &ﬁ

(Cont’D) fiF - b A (%)

(b) Included in loans and advances is an amount of (b) HBTFEBHEALTHEREBR
RMB89,641,000 (2007: RMB128,492,000) made to business e He AR %89,641,0007T
associates that is secured, interest-bearing at 1-year RMB (20074 : AR#128,492,0007T)
benchmark lending rate as determined from time to time REER RPBEARRITEFET
by the People’s Bank of China (“RMB benchmark rate") RETH —FHAREERELER
(2007: from RMB benchmark rate to 50%) per annum, and ([ ARBEEFX]) (2007 F :
recoverable within one year. AARBEEREREZ50%) AR

—FRYE -

(c)  The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (c) HKHAEEHF .  2EREBEKRENRE
demand. B o

(d)  Prepaid land costs are for leasehold land held on medium to (d)  FERT LA TS R EES &
long leases in the PRC. HENFENEE LM -

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21 ’f?j EE%EE&IE\‘
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBTT

Derivative financial asset (note 20) PTESrEE (KizE20)

Redemption option of Senior Note (note 24) BEEREERERE (Mi:E24) - 1,400
Derivative financial liabilities (note 26) PTESr AR (ME26)

Warrants (note 24) RAKHE (P 5E24) 10,402 74,541
All the amounts of derivative financial instruments are stated at FrEfTEeMIENSEIEARET
fair values. The fair value of redemption option is determined by an R BHEERENAABIRBLGE
independent valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, using the Hull-\White A& ERTE R AR A A1 ELA Hull-White
One-Factor financial model. BRRMBEIEE -

The fair value of Warrants is determined by an independent valuer, RBRENARBEHB L GEMEENE
Asset Appraisal Limited, using the Black-Scholes financial model. BEHEARARFARN R —FRHMB
BRI o
112 Hong Long Holdings Limited 385 AR A &
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

21  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

21 fiid4m TR (8)

The assumptions applied in determining the fair values of derivative
financial instruments are set out as follows:

Fair value of Warrants and assumptions

REETEERIANARERERN
R ETIT

Fair value at measurement date FFEAHNARE
Share price BB

Exercise price I8

Expected volatility TEHR IR
Expected dividends TEHARR &

Risk-free interest rate

el sRS

Fair value of redemption option of Senior Note and assumptions

Credit spread FEE=E
Expected volatility TEHIE IR
Discount rate BRIR

22  PLEDGED DEPOSITS

BIRBEAIAA B R BR

2008 2007
HK$0.1452 HK$0.9828
HK$0.375 HK$3.23
HK$1.68 HK$3.36
98% 50.93%
0% 1.86%
1.05% 3.93%

B SZIZEOE R A A B R EAR
2008 2007
23.93% 7.8%
46.66% to 21.00% to
56.39% 26.00%
25.88% 11.60% to
12.02%

22 AAEK

(a) Included in pledged deposits of the group as at 31
December 2008 were:

- Deposits of RMB4,489,000 (2007: RMB1,973,000)
pledged with certain banks as guarantee deposits for
the benefit of mortgage loan facilities granted by the
banks to purchasers of the group’s properties.

- Deposits totalling RMB49,849,000 (2007:
RMB174,460,000) pledged with banks securing the
group’s bank loans as set out in note 25.

(a) R2008%F12831H » K~EBIKH
EREE

- ]/ 4 AN R #4,489,0007C
(20074 : AR¥1,973,000
L) e ZEBE T AE TR
TERTAEEYEERHHIE
BERBEEARERSTE
AZEESRTT

- M—EHNWE 25 MIRTTE
HMERTFRITEEABAR
# 49,849,000 JT (2007 & :
AR¥ 174,460,000 7T) V7T

o
TA °

Hong Long Holdings Limited B[R A R A 7
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

22  PLEDGED DEPOSITS (CONT’D) 22 AR ()
= Deposits totalling RMB5,000,000 (2007: Nil) pledged - REMEEmMERELRA
for the bills payable. R#5,000,0007T(2007 4F :

&) WFR o

= Deposits totalling RMB508,000 (2007: Nil) pledged for = R—EMEZEERBEIAH
the payment to a construction contractor as retention HKEMEBERELBARY
monies. 508,000 7T (2007 £F : %) K

73R AMERRE TR

(b) Included in pledged deposits of the company as at 31 (b) 200812 A31H ' AR A K
December 2008 were deposits totalling RMB31,849,000 (2007: HERTEERLBRNB AR
RMB164,406,000) for bank loans granted to subsidiaries MIRITTERMBRELABARY
(note 25). 31,849,000 7T (2007 & : A R #&

164,406,0007T ) K977 3k (Bi7E25) °

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 Bl RBIEHEMEY
The group The company
AEE ADF
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETET

Deposits with banks and R R EA S RS
other financial institutions SPERAN - 121,331 - 116,646
Cash at bank and in hand RITFER LIRS 44,102 275,770 28,161 6,289
44,102 397,101 28,161 122,935
24  NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24 FEEVHAG EAE
The analysis of the carrying amount of non-current interest-bearing FERNERG BB B REBES T ¢
borrowings is as follows:
The group The company
FrEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETET

Bank loans - secured (note 25) RITEF — T8 (3£ 25) 180,000 400,678 = =
Senior Note (note (b)) Bk (M) 519,725 555,708 519,725 555,708

699,725 956,386 519,725 565,708

(a) Al of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried (a) FTEIERNEIRT BEERBEHKA
at amortised cost. None of the non-current interest-bearing HIBR - AN E IRV ARt BB E A
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year. R—FAEE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (]

24 NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(ConT’D)

/\_/&:/_w//‘

WA RHTEIT)

24 JFERPRIEHEAG 8 (4)

(b)

Senior Note

Pursuant to the offering memorandum of the company dated
20 September 2007 (“Offering Memorandum™), the company
issued 900 units of senior note (collectively referred to as
the “Senior Note") and 81,000,000 nil-paid warrants (the
“Warrants”) for a principal amount totalling US$90,000,000.
The Senior Note was interest-bearing at 12.5% per annum at
issue and payable semi-annually in arrears, and will mature
on 3 October 2012. Detachable from the Senior Note, each
Warrant may be exercised from the date of issue up to 2
October 2012 at an initial exercise price, subject to certain
conditions of reset and adjustment, of HK$3.36 per ordinary
share of the company.

Pursuant to a cross-currency and interest rate swap
agreement (the “swap agreement”) entered into between
the company and a financial institution immediately after
the Offering Memorandum, the notional principal amount
of the Senior Note under the swap agreement deemed to
be effective at the date of issue was RMB676,845,000,
whereas the notional interest rate applicable to the Senior
Note was the 1-year RMB benchmark deposit rate as
determined from time to time by the People’'s Bank of
China plus 5.3% per annum. On 10 October 2008, the swap
agreement was terminated and US$4,100,000 (equivalent
to RMB27,994,000) was received as compensation.
Subsequent to the termination of the swap agreement, the
principal of the Senior Note became US$90,000,000, and
interest-bearing at 12.5% per annum.

As a condition stated in the Offering Memorandum, the
company is granted a redemption option such that at any
time on or after 3 October 2010, the company may redeem
the Senior Note, in whole or in part, at a redemption price
equal to the percentage ranging from 100% to 106.25% of
the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to the redemption date. At any time prior to 3 October 2010,
the company may redeem the Senior Note, in whole but not
in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the Senior Note plus the applicable premium as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption
date. In addition, at any time prior to 3 October 2010, the
company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount with proceeds from certain sales of the company’s
equity shares, at a redemption price equal to 112.5% of the
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date.

(b)

BRARE

IRIEAARR 2007 9 A 20 BRI
WEEESSR((EEERE] @ K
A EEE1T 900 A B HE 5o 2R (57
A TELEEK]) %81,000,0001%
KRB RIRHE ([RIRE]) - A&
4 #£590,000,000% 7T © BEEE
BREME125%:TE - BEF¥FH
B—R & mR2012410A3H
ZH - MELAERSH  FHRK
T 3T AR E 2012410 A2
A RO TEE(XETEERA
B2 AEMIRR) AR 3.36 B TLaRME ©

IR R A E— G ph s N E R
BEBTHEITINRYNEBE R
MEmHBpE(ERRZE]D B
EEBRREBEABERETES
RAEEBNEERSBEARARE
676,845,0007T * 1M 18 5t = & &
AREBEMNELSFEARETR
RETH —FHAREEREE
FERBMEFEE3% ° HHH
2 R2008F 108108 & 1+ I
I %14,100,000EF T (HEHER AR
#27,994,000 7T ) {E A& E o 1= HA
BERILE  BEAEBEONAEE
/490,000,000 3 7T * ¥ ¥&% F F &
12.5% 51 8 °

RREEHESEMANGEE &
NRER—EEEEEE UE
720104 10 A 3 H sk A % E ] BF
o AHRESERNALEN100% =
106.25% HYHE BB 5 i = & 2] 5 HA
WIERARMAFE (F) - BRIZH
HEDEBLZLE - M201051043
A ATMEREFRE - A QB AEESR
BAEEREASEN100% BINEE
5] B 5 9 8 1< 335 B DA R FB 4R R A F
B(wag)  BEE2ImIEDIEL
ZE o SN - 7R2010F10 A3 B AT
EMEERE - ARAZBSRAS
M 112.5% S MNEED A EHTE
RAMFE (0F)  BERKZTHE
BASBERI35% ERE TIRHEE
AR FRIDHI TS FIE ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &H#5) + A EETIT)

24  NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(ConT’D)

24 JERPBIEE S0 B (A1)

(b)

Senior Note (Cont’d)

The Senior Note is general obligations of the company
and is senior in right of payment to any existing and future
obligations of the company expressly subordinated in right
of payment to the Senior Note, which is at least pari passu
in right of payment with all other unsecured, unsubordinated
indebtedness of the company (subject to any priority rights
of such unsubordinated indebtedness pursuant to applicable
laws). The Senior Note holder(s) are entitled to a first
priority security interest on certain collateral charged by the
company, and the Senior Note ranks effectively senior in right
of payment to unsecured obligations of the company with
respect to the value of the collateral charged by the company.

As at 31 December 2008, Senior Note can be analysed into
the following components:

(i) Liability component for the Senior Note represents the
present value of the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest
determined by the market instruments of comparable
credit status taken into account the business risk of
the company as well as the large amount of the Senior
Note, but without the conversion option. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 19.07% per
annum.

(i) Redemption option represents the fair value of the
company'’s option to early redeem all or part of the
Senior Note.

(i)~ Warrant represents the fair value of the right to
subscribe for the company’s equity shares at applicable
exercise price.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(b)

BRZEE (5)

BARBRAARAN—REME X
MR Fr #E LR AR B S BRER
VL IENNETE S S AL L0k
RERKKEME  WEXNEFE
=D EARRFIH A B A IR IE
KBEEEERSMM(RZIEN
BEERBERERNEAELE
HR) - BERBEFAARRESL
ERARABE THEMR T E
AmME - MHAR T UE A E A
mEEME @ BERBRXNES
EHER LELENARRNERAE
fE -

R 2008412 A31 H » BAZEA
DT BATERD

(i) BEZBENABRNSERD
EBENARRBRR T2 RRN
WE - MARRBERETL
FTRAR AR EBEERR R
RENELEER(HELEE
BHAKE) - RAT L BREE MK
ME TS T AT/ F R
B BEIPNEEREMNER
HF19.07% °

(i) BOEEREARARRER
EEOMARBOELERRE
BIRARME

(i) REERARERTEER
BARRKROHNENOA R
&
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24 JEBIHIEE 0K & (B

24  NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(ConT’D)

(b)  Senior Note (Cont'd) (b) EEZE(E)

BIERIER D7 F A

The movement of different components of the Senior

Note during the year is set out below: ZEEMT :
Redemption
Liability Warrants option Total
&fg RE  BEEEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR%TR ARETxR
(note 21) (note 21)
(FizE21) (FffEF21)
At 1 January 2007 R2007F1 818 - - - -
Proceeds from issuance BAREZEMG
of the Senior Note #IE 579,325 103,496 (5,976) 676,845
Transaction costs RGHA (31,390) - - (31,390)
Net proceeds FrSsIE % 547,935 103,496 (5,976) 645,455
Transaction costs amortised T $552 SAA 7,773 = = 7,773
Exchange differences ERER - (3,183) 166 (3,017)
Net (increase)/decrease ARBEEM),/ RO FE
in fair value = (25,772) 4,410 (21,362)
At 31 December 2007 #2007 F12 A31H 555,708 74,541 (1,400) 628,849
At 1 January 2008 #2008F 1 A1H 555,708 74,541 (1,400) 628,849
Transaction costs amortised 552 SR 23,985 = = 23,985
Exchange differences ERZESE (59,968) (4,292) 86 (64,174)
Net (increase)/decrease ARBEEM),/ RO FE
in fair value = (59,847) 1,314 (58,533)
At 31 December 2008 #2008F 12 A31H 519,725 10,402 - 530,127

R2008F 12 A31H » BAZEMNAEH
PHARBEHREREETESAER o

The fair value of the liability component of the Senior
Note is not materially different from its carrying value
as at 31 December 2008.

Hong Long Holdings Limited YB3 ER A 117
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24  NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(ConT’D)

24 JERPBIEE SR B (A7)

(b) Senior Note (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
company has been unable to meet the Fixed Charge
Coverage Ratio and the Leverage Ratio under the
indenture governing the Senior Note, dated as
of 3 October 2007, among the company, Access
Achievement Limited as initial subsidiary guarantor
and Citibank, N.A., London Branch as trustee (the
“Indenture”). Although this does not constitute a
“Default” as defined under the Indenture, the group’s
ability to undertake certain activities is restricted
under the Indenture, unless such activities fall within
certain exceptions specified in the Indenture. These
restrictions include, but are not limited to, those
relating to the company’s and its subsidiaries’ abilities
to (i) incur indebtedness (other than certain “Permitted
Indebtedness” set forth in the Indenture), (i) make
“Restricted Payments” (including declaration or
payment of dividends and purchase or redemption of
Capital Stock of the company or its subsidiaries), and
(iii) designate subsidiaries as Unrestricted Subsidiaries
(as defined in the Indenture) (notes 31(d)(v) and 31(e)).
Details of the restrictive covenants of the Senior Note
are set forth in the Indenture and are summarised in
the Offering Memorandum in connection with the
issue of the Senior Note.

25 BANK LOANS

(b)

BREE (5)

REZ=2008F 12 A31 8 1t
FE - ARBREERAR
A] ~ Access Achievement
Limited (fEB¥IIAHI B A 7]
R A) K Citibank, N.A. f&
HH1T(HEREFEA)R 2007
F10ASHITUKEEERE
ERZ2ZA(TZL]) RHE
TERABEZHELEMER
b o EE W TEREL
PAEHIELN] A&H
EITET/EBAEE X ER
HRE - BRIEZZEFBDBEE
#H P BA Y E T HISMER
ZERGIBE(BTRR)Z
SHARTRREMBAR ()
BRERK(RLOMIANE
T [FFRI &R ] BRAN) 5 (i) 1B
[ ZREFR] (REFEIR
SR 5 AR B K% B8 B s B B AR
DA EH B AR RIEA)
K (i) E M B A REATE
FRFIMEAR(EEREL)
(FFEE31(d)(v) &2 31(e)) Z B
NEBHRG - BEELEE
BH IR B 225 F BRI 2
B RN EITELEER
FIBEHBEEHER

25  SRATEIEK

Bank loans IRITER
- secured —BHEH
— unsecured —

Hong Long Holdings Limited 381G A &
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The group
AEE

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREFT
650,124 584,697
40,000 35,000
690,124 619,697
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25 BANK LOANS (CONT’D) 25  SRATEK ()

At 31 December 2008, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year or on demand —F AR EREHE
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREREA
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBERFA
After 5 years hER

At 31 December 2007, included in bank loans due within 1 year
or on demand is the current portion of RMB30,321,000 of a long-
term bank loan. At 31 December 2008, the long-term bank loan
of RMB400,124,000 was included in bank loans due within 1 year
or on demand as the loan has been fully repaid subsequent to
the year end. The repayment is financed by a new bank loan of
RMB600,000,000 obtained by the group after the year end.

At 31 December 2008, assets of the group secured against bank
loans are analysed as follows:

Properties for future development
and under development for sale

Investment properties

Pledged deposits

BREME
HEHRFR

Included in the group’s bank loans of RMB30,000,000 (2007:
RMB153,698,000) are bank loans drawn down by subsidiaries and
pledged by the company’s pledged deposits of RMB31,849,000
(2007: RMB164,406,000).

HHERKFE RERP Y

20085128318  [EEBEMNIRITER
[N

The group
&M

2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARKETT
I 510124 219019 _

30,800 32,528

149,200 112,491

- 255,659
I 180,000 400678

690,124 619,697

2007412 A31 8 — F & 2 4 ¢
REREENRITERRERPRITE
MR EBNER L o & A R 130,321,000
JC o 72008412 A31H  ABARMK
400,124,000 TR REARITERE T AR
—FREHARIEEREENRITER
FEAERERFELEEBBHEE - EX
HASERFEEEDNBN—SREAR
¥ 600,000,000 70 2 #TIR 1T E RIBH &
% °

200812318 » BAEAIRITER
BN AEEBEEZ2NAT ¢

The group
*EE

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARKETT
194,136 -
1,212,000 -
49,849 174,460
1,455,985 174,460

£ @R 17T B 5k A R % 30,000,000 7T
(2007 & : AR# 153,698,000t ) B 1%
M /BB A Al B ER K AR A /)4 30 77 5K
") 4R 17 B 3 A R # 31,849,000 7T (2007
& AR 164,406,000 L) °
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND ACCRUALS 26 MEATHRZK ~ - A A I AR
1
The group The company
TEE P VN
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETT ARBTT ARETT ARET:R
Bills payable ARESE 5,000 = = =
Trade payables FETBRTR 36,493 16,959 = =
Amount due to a director BN —REERE 537 899 = =
Amount due to a subsidiary FE—FEIPN B A BRI - - 109 =
Amount due to a related PR —EREE A RIFIE
company - 18,000 - -
Derivative financial TEemIA
instruments (note 21) (FffEE21) 10,402 74,541 10,402 74,541
Other creditors and HAFERR
accrued charges RIERER 350,144 204,179 27,599 24,248
402,576 314,578 38,110 98,789

The amounts due to a director and a related company are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in trade and other payables, and accruals are trade and bills
payables with the following ageing analysis as at the balance sheet

date:

Due within 3 months or on demand

27  RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

318 A AR ELENR

27

N —R2EER—HBAZRARRELE
B B RARERESR -

RNER  HeENRRBERERRRE
BNERRENRE  EREERER

HEVBRE DTN
The group
rEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT
41,493 16,959
TE WK

Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the group’s pre-sales of properties and
prepaid rental income from tenants of the group’s investment
properties. All of the receipts in advance are expected to be settled

within one year.
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28 RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS 28 & RH A4
Included in rental and other deposits were RMB8,741,000 (2007: HErEMZeRRE—SBHN —
RMB8,634,000) which are expected to be settled after more than FigEE A ARKS,741,0007T K B
one year. All other rental and other deposits are expected to be (20074 : AR#8,634,0007T) - FTBEE
settled within one year. HHEERHEMIESHTERR —FAEE -
29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 29 HFHEEEAMENNTER
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) HEEEEBERMAHFEE:
represents:
The group
AEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFT ARETT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIZEFEH
Provision for the year NG 16,059 41,822
Provisional tax paid B HHIE - (1,080)
Balance of tax provision BRABTFENTIE

relating to prior years R F s 57,321 26,540
Taxation payable efsyE 73,380 67,282
Land Appreciation Tax T 1 IBER
Provision for the year NG 328 98,291
Balance of tax provision BRABTFENTIE

relating to prior years R F s 171,944 77,313
Taxation payable ef~syE 172,272 175,604
Total taxation payable FERTRR TR B R 245,652 242,886

Hong Long Holdings Limited S8 & B R A F 121
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29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 29 HKAEBEEABENNESH
(Cont’D) (%)
(b) Deferred taxation (b) EZERIE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised m%é EER Ef @\ﬁﬁ?ﬁ@gﬁﬁ
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during A (_QE)/E{E‘ #h D REREEHIN
the year are as follows: DS
Depreciation Temporary
allowances differences
in excess arising from ~ Capitalisation
Revaluation of related  Total deferred Land of interest ~ Total deferred
ofinvestment ~ depreciation tax liablities Appreciation Tax expenses tax assets
Deferred tax arising from: properties  EXEEAEN BEHE  REIHEER (A EERE Total
BERERE EfRENE  MERHE BEAE  DERER HEx EEER it

RUBOO  RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBOM  RMBON  RMBON  RMBON
ARETE  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

At1 January 2007 R007E1 418 86812 - 86,612 - - - 86,812

Chargedi(redited] to proftoross /A BR 27,08 - 21,061 [14,744) - (14744 12308

At31 December 2007 RN0TE12A31B 113,864 - 113,864 (14,744) o (14,744) 99120

At 1 January 2008 2008%1A1A 113,864 - 113,864 (14,744) o (14,744) 9120

Chargedi(redited] to proftoross /A BR 15530 3903 19433 - (13676 (13676) 5767

Effect o changes i tat rate on HERgHBIER

opening defered tax balances fagnnge 75910 - 75910 9829 - 9829 66,081

At 31 December 2008 2008%12731 B 205,304 3903 209,207 (24573 (13676) (38.249) 170,958
(¢)  The group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect () AEBXARERBBEE AR

of tax losses of RMB9,469,000 (2007: RMB3,246,000) as # 9,469,000 7T (2007 & : AR

it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available 3,246,000 70 ) HEBIELBIA A E -

B 75 AR RS AT BE 4 L SRk A DA
HIHEE - REBESRIERTH
BIRAERIR 2013 FEIH] -

against which the losses can be utilised. The tax losses will
be expired in 2013 under current tax legislation.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30 Iy‘ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%lﬁﬁﬁ%’(

The company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January RARN 2007 F 1 A 31 BEM—ERR

2007 whereby the directors of the company are authorised, at HETE BULARRESTERETHIE
ey =

their discretion, to invite employees and consultants of the group, BRASRENES RER (AR SER

TEMRRNES) RBARARD © %
ERBE-—RERHAHER A EAZE

including directors of any company in the group, to subscribe for

shares of the company. These options generally vest after six _
—FRFEBE RARAZE H 1

months to one year from the date of grant and are exercisable within i%%ﬂ% JL&—_J\EA ii+ RN TI

) i © ) £ o B RIER THREAER - ATE

a period of five to ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to R TE B B RARHE 10 7 7T R —
= = 70N A A

subscribe for one ordinary share of the company at a pre-determined e A B X 5mAR

exercise price plus a consideration of HK$10 per option holder.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (a) FARAEEHENERIRMEEDOT
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are BUAERBRESURDETED
settled by physical delivery of shares: AT

Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
RAREHE REGHE ARESHESR TRE
Options granted to directors: KTEZ0RRE
- on 31 January 2007 —12007461A318 7,000,000 Six months from 22 February 2007 byears HK$0.60
(the" Listing Date") 5% 060
200762 A 228 ([ EWA])
et EA
-on 15 May 2007 —12007465A 158 10,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
B B SRR~ EA 10F 1845
Options granted to employees: R T /E E MM
- on 31 January 2007 —1200741A318 12,000,000 Six months from the Listing Date 5years  HK$0.60
/B L AR/ EA 5% 06047
-on 15 May 2007 —12007465A 158 13,309,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
B BER A EAR 10F 1845
- on 10 October 2007 —R2007€10A 108 1,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years  HK$2.99
B B SR A EAR 105 29957
Options granted to third parties: BT H = HHIRIRIE -
-on 15 May 2007 —12007465A 158 18,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.84
B B SRR EA 10F 1848
- on 10 October 2007 —2007410A10R 5,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$2.99
B B SRR EA 105 29957
- on 10 October 2007 —12007£10A 108 20,000,000 One year from the date of grant 10years HK$2.99
B B SRR —F 105 29957
-on 13 February 2008 —12008%62A 138 8,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 10years HK$1.70
IRt A B/ E A 106 17087
Total share options RIS 94,309,000
Hong Long Holdings Limited JE&1=R AR A &l 123
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (K55 FAr#55)

30 DABAR % % SRR B4 A sk (A

30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT’D)

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

(b) RIEHR REINEFHITEEN

share options are as follows: T
2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
ET Mg
Cg:d RIS 11208 RIEE
‘000 ‘000
Tk TR
Outstanding at the FMEATE
beginning of the year HK$1.91 86,309 - -
Granted during the year FRRL HK$1.70 8,000 HK$1.86 90,929
Exercised during the year FRITE N/A - HK$0.64 (4,150)
Forfeited during the year FREWR HK$2.28 (13,170) HK$1.84 (470)
Outstanding at the FEEATE
end of the year HK$1.83 81,139 HK$1.91 86,309
Exercisable at the FERATAE
end of the year HK$1.83 81,139 HK$1.45 60,309

Equity-settled share-based payments of RMB15,717,000
(2007: RMB44,727,000) regarding share options granted on
10 October 2007 and 13 February 2008 (2007: share options
granted on 15 May 2007 and 10 October 2007) have been
charged to the consolidated income statement under general
and administrative expenses and other operating expenses.

During the year, 8,170,000 (2007: 470,000) and 5,000,000
(2007: Nil) share options granted on 15 May 2007 and 10
October 2007 respectively were forfeited. Accordingly, the
fair values on grant date of the share options so forfeited of
RMB6,926,000 (2007: RMB220,000) was transferred from
the capital reserve to retained profits.

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2008. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the
weighted average share price for share options exercised
was HK$2.80.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had exercise
prices of HK$0.60, HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 (2007:
HK$0.60, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 7.4 years (2007: 8.1 years).

AR 2007510 A 10 H K% 20084
2 13 B LM RLHE (2007 F :
200745 H 158 % 2007410 A
10 AR WRRE) 2 ARD B
BEBHNZRARE15,717,0007T
(2007 % : AR#44,727,0007T)
ERGEEBERTH—BREITHE
A DA R E At 8 58 B FR AR 4Bk o

FR 8,170,000 (2007 4 :
470,0001% ) 5,000,000 17 (2007
F: &) D BIR2007F5 8158
K 2007410 A108 & H 2 R K%
BEH LK At ZFERIK
RREARHBHEHAARBEAR
#6,926,000 7T (2007 4F : A R #&
220,00070) EREARFEHEEES
RBEF o

REZE2008F 12 31 HILEE -
BECARARERTE - BHE
2007 F 12 A31 HILFEEITER
BRAERTTE B AR INAE 9 IR E A
2.8087T °

R 20084 12 A 31 HHARITER
BB ITEE A0.60/8 7T~ 1.70/8
JC * 1.847 JT 802.997% Jt (2007
£ 1 0.60/87T * 1.8487082.99/8
JL) MAEFEHHBTANESRE
7.4% (2007 F : 8.14) -
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30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT D)

30 PAIetr 7 s SRR RRE A A8 3k (A5

(¢)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) REENAAEBERRERSE
The fair value of services received in return for share options LAYR T R B MR ER P R B AR A A 22
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share RED2EAETRARENALE
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share TR - IR TRREN AR EMET
options granted is measured based on both the Black-Scholes DR RALR - FRAEEER R
pricing model and the binomial lattice model. The contractual “HEAREEXGE - RRENS
life and expectations of early exercise of the share option L FE R FEEIR BT E TV E A SUR
were used as inputs into relevant models. AR BELR -
Fair value of share options and assumptions FRIRFERI A (B RIRAR
Grant date
RHAH
31 January 15 May 10 October 13 February
2007 2007 2007 2008

2007514318 200745A15H 200746104108 2008528 13H

Fair value at measurement date R ERHNAAE HK$0.78 HK$0.47 HK$0.64 HK$0.54
Share price RE N/A HK$1.84 HK$2.93 HK$1.61
Exercise price il HK$0.60 HK$1.84 HK$2.99 HK$1.70
Expected volatility (expressed as BHRE(ZE

weighted average volatility EBYEzclea)) 1S

used in the models) TRERT) 47.9% 48.9% 51.05% 56.17%
Option life (expressed as RREFE(AZZ

weighted average life EARERmIE

used in the models) THEERT) 3 years 3.25 years 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends BHRE 4.4% 34% 1.21% -
Risk-free interest rate (based on ERBFIE (UHNE

Exchange Fund Notes) EEEEHE) 4.0% 4.2% 4.28% 2.69%
Valuation model used FRMMERDS Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes Binomial Binomial

Ehn-88E anR-HRm 2R -y

T8 HR i 70 AR H5 R SR R (AR 5 RR AR B
EFHHRTEREFE) - W RIEAH
AR E BT R B ) R OR R -

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

RIRERF RIS AR R B o AR A
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date T R ATUER AR 75 7 4%t B ERRY & A2 (B 5T
fair value measurement of the services received. There were 2 o WAREDREM RO TSR o
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The

Hong Long Holdings Limited 3E[& 1= AR A &
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 31 B K
(a) The group (a) ZAE£H
Statutory Minority
Share Share  Merger  reserve  Capital  Retained interests Total

capital  premium reserve fund  reseve  profits  Total JERR  equity
Be BHEE ARG tERRE ARG REE &3t Bh  ReEE
Note  RMBOO0  RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2007 R07E1A18 (elf) 80 - 2,979 34122 - 762151 821332 201 844423
Profit for the year RERER = = = = - 5068 250685 (183 250,502
Transfer to statutory resenve fund ~ EBEEREES - - - 8,366 - (83660l - - -
Atising from reorganisation REfEE (c)i) 75 - (752) = = = = = =
Capitaisation ssue EXEh o) 5% [5%) - - - - - - -
Shares issued pursuant fo the REREER

global offering and upon ReERREEqRN

the exercise of the overalloment  E{THIR( (11

option, netof shareissuing costs ~ IRAZ{IRA) i 282 462767 - - - - 16559 - 16559
Conversion of convertblenote ~ ERTERZE (e 653 116971 - - - - 1176M - 1176M
Fouity-settled share-based payments Wik BEEER#H

(note 30| (Hs30) - - - - um - um - um
Shares issued under share option R EEAREs &I

scheme ki3 (clfv) 3 5,669 = = (3,176 = 2,531 - 2531
Share options forfeited ERkEARE - - - - (220) b - = =
Acquisition of additionl interests in ~ MEEHBAFRES

subsidiaries by = = = = - (50400 (750400 (10,6400 (85,680
At31 December 2007 R2007%12A318 1029 579,466 24,221 42488 4331 929650 1,627,458 12,268 1,639,726
At1 January 2008 RNBE1A1A 1029 579,466 2,221 4488 4331 929650 1,627,458 12,268 1,639,726
Prfitfor theyear REERH = - - - - 36 356 (% 330
Transfer to statutory resenve fund ~ EBEEREES - - - 1597 - (53 = = =
Fouity-settled share-based payments MiR() BEEER#H

(note 30| (Hs30) - - - - B - 1517 - B
Share options forfeited ERkEARE - - - - b%e 6% - = =
Establishment of a subsidiary el vk

in the PRC - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
At31 December 2008 R 2008% 127318 1029 579,466 24,221 44,025 50,122 938585 1,646,721 13,082 1,669,803
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 31 BEA K AHEM (5H)
(b) The company (b) ZARQF]
Share Share Merger Capital Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve losses Total

Ba  BfER iR ERBE Z0ER it
Note ~ RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBO0D
Wi ARETL ARETL ARBTL ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2007 R2007E1818 - = = = (29 (29)
Loss for the year TERER - - - - (62,1100 (62110)
Avrising from reorganisation REfEs (el 832 - (752) - - 80
Capitalsation issue BRLES (el 5,941 (5,941) - - - -
Shares issued pursuant to the REZHEERRRERR

global offering and upon EEAEREINRG

the exercise of the over-allotment (MR RIAETRA)

option, net of share issuing costs (c)liv) 2832 462,767 - - - 465,599
Conversion of convertible note ERTAREE (cltv) 653 116971 - - - 1764
Equity-settled share-based payments R BEE R

[note 30) (M:E30) - - - wum - w70
Shares issued under share option scheme (R BRI BIBTHRL (cltvi) 38 5,669 - (3.176) - 2531
Share options forfeited BRI - - - (220 220 =
At 31 December 2007 2007128318 10,296 579,466 (752) 41,331 (61,919 568,422
At 1 January 2008 R2008E1718 10,296 579,466 (752) 41,331 (61,919 568,422
Profit for the year RFERR - - - = 21524 2152
Equity-settled share-based payments R BEEERR

[note 30) (#30) - - - 15,717 - 15717
Share options forfeited BRI aE - - - (6,926) 6,926 =
At 31 December 2008 H2008€12A31H 10,296 579,466 (752) 50,122 (27,469) 611,663
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(B ZHHTE9) KA RIS T)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (=

31

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

31

A R okt 5 (A

(c)

Share capital

(i)

(ii)

The share capital presented in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 1 January 2007 represents the share capital
of Access Achievement Limited.

On 20 July 2006, the company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with authorised share capital of
10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. One nil-paid share
of HK$0.01 was issued and allotted to Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, which was transferred to
Grand Prosperity Limited on the same day. In addition,
the company issued 99 nil-paid shares of HK$0.01 each
and allotted to Grand Prosperity Limited on the same
day.

On 31 January 2007, by an ordinary resolution passed
at the meeting of Board of directors, the company's
authorised ordinary share capital was increased to
HK$300,000,000 by the creation of an additional
29,990,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
ranking pari passu with the existing shares of the
company in all respects. On the same day, the
company issued and allotted, credited as fully paid at
par of HK$0.01, 83,999,900 shares to Grand Prosperity
Limited, and credited as fully paid at par the 100 nil
paid shares already held by Grand Prosperity Limited,
in consideration for an aggregate of 100,000 shares
of US$0.1 each representing the entire issued share
capital of Access Achievement Limited transferred to
the company as to 80,000 shares by Mr Sheng ZENG
and 20,000 shares by Mr Yunshu ZENG pursuant to an
agreement for sale and purchase entered into between
the company as purchaser, and Mr Sheng ZENG and
Mr Yunshu ZENG as vendors on the same day.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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(c)

B2

(i)

(ii)

20071 B18B B &
EEEBBEREINRA
A Access Achievement
Limited RIAE AN o

R2006F7H208 © K
AR SRS REMKL - &
TEMRZN 410,000,000 B AR
EE0.01BITHARM ° 1A%
FARME(E 0.01 BT K R AR
HAR(DEEAT REEE T Codan
Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited + WA F B &E#ET
Grand Prosperity Limited °
dboh - AR BT 99 R E AR
[E 1B 0.01 7 JT B R B AR R AR
7 AR BEZEFGrand
Prosperity Limited °

2007418318 ' BER
EFEgga L ABNTA
RBER ARAIWNEE
R N I
29,990,000,000 f% & A& T &
0.01 B LKL mRMEME
300,000,000 7T + I 1£ &
FHERDFRRERD=E
BRFMAA - FAAB - AAA
M Grand Prosperity Limited
BT RECE (REME0.01 %
JCABR 2 ) 83,999,900 %
& - WIREE AR E B
Grand Prosperity Limited
FT# B #9100 % K 8 3K A%
7 RERAARRAGEEE
B Access Achievement
Limited 2 3B &/TRAH
& 2£100,000 R FAXE(E 0.1
ETHRG  BREBEXRRQA
(ERER)HIEBEERT
EREE(MUER/ET)R
BRBEFIZHEE RS HH
80,000 Ax X 15 F 5 B 5E £ 84
% 220,000 IR AR 17 A B AR
FEEE -
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

31 BEARKMHEM ()

(c) Share capital (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

On 22 February 2007, an amount of RMB5,941,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account
was applied in paying up in full 600,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each which were allotted and
distributed as fully paid to the then shareholders.

On 22 February 2007, an aggregate of 250,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and
offered for subscription at a price of HK$1.8 per
share upon the listing of the company’'s share
on the Stock Exchange. On 13 March 2007, an
aggregate of 36,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued and offered for subscription
at a price of HK$1.8 per share upon the exercise
of the over-allotment option. The group raised
approximately HK$472,345,000 in total (equivalent to
RMB465,599,000), net of related expenses from the
share offer.

On 22 February 2007, an aggregate of US$8,000,000
convertible note was converted into 66,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

(c)  BRA (&)

(iii)

200742 A22 8 « B
BEEREMEEREDEARE
5,941,000 T T3 B A EX
IR R R BE R DR T &
fi% 52 #9 600,000,000 A% & A%
H{EO0.01 BraE@EK -

M200749€2 F228  AAF
ROEHRT LMK &S
f& 1.8 LB EITRIRE
4 #£250,000,000 % FAEE(E
0.01 B Ay L% - AR
8% - 20073 4138 © ©¥
L REETEE AR
RAIAGRY 1.8 BT BIR BT
Ni2 24 36,100,000 fi &
AR E{E0.01 B LA @A -
AR - AEESEOH
472,345,000 7% 7T (FEE R A
FR# 465,599,000 7T ) (FNBRAY
NEEHNHEER) -

M®2007F2H228 - & H
8,000,000 3 7T /) 7] #2 ik =
BB 566,000,000 BE
AR TE{E 0.01 BT Ay A% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 35 B 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (r5HAT#E5) + UA R TTSR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 31 BEARK M (5)
(c)  Share capital (Cont’d) (¢) MmRA(E)
(vl  On 12 December 2007, options were exercised (vij PM2007F12H128 @ AR

to subscribe for 4,000,000 ordinary shares in the
company at a consideration of HK$2,400,000
(equivalent to RMB2,267,000) of which HK$40,000
(equivalent to RMB37,000) was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$2,360,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,230,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$3,116,000 (equivalent to RMB3,106,000)
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the
share premium account in accordance with policy set
out in note 2(p)(iii).

On 13 December 2007, options were exercised to
subscribe for 100,000 ordinary shares in the company
at a consideration of HK$184,000 (equivalent to
RMB174,000) of which RMB700 was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$183,100 (equivalent
to RMB173,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$48,000 (equivalent to RMB47,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in
note 2(p)(iii).

On 24 December 2007, options were exercised to
subscribe for 50,000 ordinary shares in the company
at a consideration of HK$92,000 (equivalent to
RMB90,000) of which RMB500 was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$91,500 (equivalent
to RMB90,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$24,000 (equivalent to RMB23,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in
note 2(p)(iii).

#% 4,000,000 f& A~ 2 &) & 8
BRORBRIEETE  REAR
2,400,000% jt (B & B A
R #2,267,0007T ) © H &F
40,000 T (FBERARE
37,0007 ) 5T ABR A K #5458
2,360,000 %7t (FHE R AR
¥ 2,230,000 7T ) 5T AR 5
BER - IRIEHIEE 2(p) (iii) FTak
BB © 3,116,00058 7T (18
g » A R #23,106,0007T )
EREANEERERGEE
,EE °

720074612 8138 » AT R
§8100,000% & A 7 & 8
BREORREETE  RE
£184,0007% 7T (18 & K A
R #174,00070 )+ & A
R 700 Tat AR A K 8458
183,100 &7t (IHER AR
173,0007% ) 58 A BR 9 % (B
B8R o ARIEFIRE 2(p) (iii) FrERAY
Br K © 48,0008 T (B E R
ARM47,00070) EHRER
EEBEERMDRER

20074612 4248 » AT R
50,000 I8 & A &) & i iR
MARREETE  REAR
92,000 L (HHER AR
90,0007t) + ER AR®500
TLEF ARRAS K #4288 91,500 7%
Tt (FHE R AR 90,0007T)
AT ARG R B o RIRH&E
2(p)(iii) FTELAI SR + 24,000
T (FHE W AR 23,000
T BREABERERN
wER o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3= s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 31 EAKAE M (5)
(c)  Share capital (Cont'd) (c) MRA(4&)
(vi)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at (vii REEBEXRERERER

the balance sheet date FT{R R ARAE A 153K

2008 2007
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
1T1EER 1T1EE 2B HH
22 August 2007 to 21 February 2012 HK$0.60 19,000,000 19,000,000
20078 A22HBZE2012F2 A21H 0.6087T
15 November 2007 to 14 May 2016 HK$1.84 33,139,000 41,309,000
200711 A15BE 201645 A 14H 1.84 87T
10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 1,000,000 6,000,000
20084 A10BZE2017F 10 A9 H 2.99%7T
10 October 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 20,000,000 20,000,000
200810 H10BE 2017410 A9 H 2.99%7T
13 August 2008 to 13 August 2018 HK$1.70 8,000,000 -
200848 A13HZE20184 8 A 13 H 1.707%87C

81,139,000 86,309,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one FHRKERTFE AEFR
ordinary share of the company. Further details of Al R — AN R T AR -
these options are set out in note 30 to the financial BHEZERRENE —TF
statements. BRI ISR 30 ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 /A9 » XA EEITSR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D) 31 BEARK Gk (5)
(c)  Share capital (Cont’d) (c) MBRA(E)
(viii) The share capital at the balance sheet date is as (viii REEBEBERAMNBRENT:
follows:
2008 2007
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
RPEE Eix ] RSB £
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AL
Authorised: HBE
Ordinary shares of ~ &REE0.01787T
HK$0.01 each IRl 30,000,000,000 300,000 30,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: E%{TRER :
Ordinary shares of ~ &REE0.01787T
HK$0.01 each IRl 1,040,250,000 10,403 1,040,250,000 10,403
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
RMB equivalent 10,296 10,296
(ix)  On 3 October 2007, 81,000,000 Warrants were (ix) F720074F10A38 =K
7

issued to the initial purchasers of the Senior Note.
At the balance sheet date, there were 81,000,000
outstanding Warrants. Each of the Warrant holders
is entitled to subscribe in cash at an exercise price,
subject to certain conditions of reset and adjustment,
of HK$3.36 each for one ordinary share of HK$0.01
each of the company at any time from 3 October
2007 to 2 October 2012. On 20 September 2008,
the exercise price of the Warrants has been reset to
HK$1.68, being 50% of the initial exercise price of
HK$3.36. The Warrants when exercised in full would,
with the present capital structure of the company,
result in the issue of 81,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each and aggregate subscription
monies of HK$136,080,000 (2007: HK$272,160,000)
before the related expenses.

A 7 E 1781,000,000 19 &
BRETEEZENNSE
HeREEBEBERA A
81,000,000 13 & 17 & A %
T o BAIRRERB ARHA
2007410 A3 H # 2012
F10828 - EAERBK
RIFEE(ZETEERS
BRIEGAER) FX3.3678
T LB ERBE-RERE
H0.01 B T AR A L&
% o 72200849 A20H © &
BRIENTTEBEETEH1.68
7B - BIANATTIE(E3.36 78
TTHI50% © AR RMIRE
BAREET  2RBERR
BTG B R EREINETT
81,000,000 f% A% E{E 0.01
BITHLER - RRERE
BENINGEBEE RS
136,080,000 7T (2007 4F :
272,160,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3= s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

31 BEARKGER (5

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired
over the nominal value of the shares used by the
company exchange thereafter.

Statutory reserve fund

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the group are required to transfer
10% of its profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC Accounting Regulations, to statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into share capital by the issue of new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings or by increasing the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the company
are distributable to the shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed the company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

(d) fREHWEERER

(1)

(ii)

(ifi)

=4

& GF 18 T2 48 P UK BB O Y /B
REAROOEERERNRFR
SHBENEEZ RN E
B e

HERES

REBEFEARE  AEEW
BN B 2 AR B
B2 - RR A AR s A Y
0% BEEEEHFES  BH
ERREHERETEMER
#)50% o BB FRIA 2 Ik A
AR 2 KBS T AR A
fEH

EERES T AAEEBRAE
FENEBR(WE): EB
ERRABRREMBRE
TR AR AD A AN % AR IR 5
BROMEESEEHESE
BABRA  HERZETER
HEBRDFLONEMERD
25% °

Bt 18

RERSHSREE AR
AR BRI E S A
DIRTARRBIIRE - MHEZBE
BRREREZBHEAR
AR RS H B E KBRS
185 H B HERS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 35 B 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (r5HAT#E5) + UA R TTSR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

31

AR R il (D)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Cont’d)
(iv)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 2(p)(iii).

(v)  Distributability of retained profits

For dividend purposes, the amount which the company
and its subsidiaries can legally distribute by way of a
dividend is by reference to the profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with PRC GAAP. These profits differ from
those reflected in these financial statements, which
are prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Upon listing of the company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, dividends will
be distributed out of the group’s net distributable
earnings, which represent the lower of the net profit as
determined in accordance with PRC GAAP and HKFRS,
less allocations to the statutory reserve fund.

As at 31 December 2008, the retained profits
available for distribution was RMB272,287,000 (2007:
RMB312,167,000). There are conditions in respect
of the payment of dividends required by the Senior
Note Indenture resulting from the non-compliance of
the financial covenants as set out in note 24(b) to the
financial statements.

(e) Capital management

The group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3= s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

31 BEARKfHER (5

(e)

Capital management (Cont’d)

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-equity ratio. For
this purpose the group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables, and accruals), less pledged deposits and,
cash and cash equivalents.

During 2008, the group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2007, was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in
line with market expectations. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt. There are conditions in respect of the payment
of dividends required by the Senior Note Indenture resulting
from the non-compliance of the financial covenants as set out
in note 24(b) to the financial statements.

(e)

EAXRER ()

REETRG L EHHEEAREE
TR RER - AERSRE @R
BT AT ae B B = iR Bk T 82
RAFEVE AR R AT B R AR
Z RERGF - 3F R ER BRI R

MEAMF - NEEAFR
B G T AREEERAEN
BiE - RUAKERFRERER
mAaE(EeEEERREEN
REMNERR - EENREIREE
R)REEREREReRRSSE
E¥ -

20084 A - AN & [ /Y S E
2007 FRIF AR - HFABEYE
ML ETENSEY - BT #HTH
ABZILE - AEERGFHED
FRENKRESHE  BITHERND
RBEATRR  BEMONELR
AERHEBRENRDEE - ARK
BETT & MRS IRAR M5 24(b) PEIEY
BARBZNNPBEE - GHK
AR R E TARR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 35 B 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k5B A#55) » AN ERHETSTR)

31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)

31 BEARKAGER (5)

(e) Capital management (Cont’d)

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the balance sheet date is as

follows:

Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables,
and accruals
Bank loans

Non-current liabilities:
Interest-bearing borrowings

Total debt

Less: pledged deposits

Less: cash and cash
equivalents

Net debt

Total equity

Net debt-to-equity
capital ratio

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

RITER

FRBEE:
AHEfEE

waE
. B
B RENREFED

FREHERE

externally imposed capital requirements.
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Note
i3

26
25

24

22

23

(e) BEXREE(E)
REEBERB  FAEHERL
EWT
The group The company
A&E N

2008 2007 2008 2007

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETT ARETR AR®T:R

402,576 314,578 38,110 98,789

510,124 219,019 - =

912,700 533,597 38,110 98,789

699,725 956,386 519,725 555,708

1,612,425 1,489,983 557,835 654,497

(59,846)  (176,433) (31,849) (164,406)

(44,102)  (397,101) (28,161) (122,935)

1,508,477 916,449 497,825 367,156

1,659,803 1,639,726 611,663 568,422

91% 56% 81% 65%

EINSEESCIC] PR ST IS
Fob) A A ALER ) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3R 3= s

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32 @I H

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and
concentration risks arises in the normal course of the group’s

business. These risks are limited by the group’s financial

management policies and practices described below:

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The extent of the group’s credit exposure is represented
by the aggregate balance of cash at bank, trade and other
receivables. Except for those disclosed in note 32(e), the
group has no concentrations on credit risk. Cash transactions
are limited to high-credit-quality institutions.

The group has a defined credit policy. The group reviews the
ageing of loans and advances on a regular basis and closely
monitor the recoverability of the balances. The group has also
arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of properties
and provided guarantees to secure repayment obligations of
such purchasers. Details of these guarantees are set out in
note 35.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the group are responsible for
their own cash management based on the group’s internal
guidelines on liquidity requirement, including raising loans to
cover the expected cash demand, and obtaining credit lines,
subject to approval by the company's Board of directors. The
group’s objective is to strike a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facility
and other borrowings. The group financed its operations and
investment activities with internally generated cash flows,
balanced with proceeds from the issue of the Senior Note and
the line of credit obtain from banks. There has been no default
on repayment of interests and/or bank borrowings as at year
end or at any time during the year.

EL

MENME ~ R - HMNE R & R

EASE-REBREHHE - ZFRA
S AR 4R LA TS P A 7K 5% 11 O B 75 B R IROOR
KERERE -

(a)

(b)

ERRAR

REBFRAZHOERRR T RT
Re R WR RN 8 AR 5K
B A ER AR o IRITRE32(e) WO ER
IAGN - REE A EmEARTEHRR
- ReX5RRNERERDN
HrE -

REBEFBWOEREE - K&
B E Bien B R B R R, X
BEERZFEHTAAKE o &
SETRETYERERREHRTAR
EREEBERAREZSEERET
EEET - FHZRSERNFES
FHHIFE35

TRED R B

REBER K BEQRBREAEESE
MRS ESRENAES - BT
BEEAGNESER  BEE%
ERNENTRRNESHERRES
MEE HARGARAEFSH
o AEEN B IRER IR EBE
RRITEEREMEEERESH
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R 35 B 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &H#5) + A EETIT)

32 T H (4)

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIERR
REBEFRREREZRENEE
BERBE ASBEEEHERS
EEEE  BEUARMESHOTIBK
N RARAANEEMEIERRH
BN EBERAN SRS
BRZFETIANERE - NEBR
757 2R 2 B 3 K 4R [0 I sk 1R A
REIRN -

The group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing assets and liabilities. It is the group's intention to keep
its borrowings at floating interest rate with an aim to reflect
market costs of funding. It is this reason that cost of specific
borrowings financing the group’s development projects
would be capitalised at a rate reflecting market conditions.
The group’s effect on changes in interest rate is considered
immaterial to the group's profit or loss.

(i) Interest rate profile ()  FIE#HE
TREFRALEERAR AR
EEABRENEEREE
WFEEE o

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the group’s and the company's assets and liabilities at
the balance sheet date.

The group The company
A5H AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
v Uik EnE Uik
%  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AEETT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents: ~ BERESEEY
Pledged deposits ivleEs 0069 59846 072461 176433 0 31849 225461 164406
Saving deposits EEE 0-069 41218 015081  2526% 0053 275056  0.15081 6,268
Loans: &
Loans and advances EVER 531747 89641 684747 103562 531747 21772 684747  203%
Fixed rate borrowings: EfEE:
Senior Note BrERE ___le07 5197 0 - - - 1907 51975 = =
Variable rate borrowings: ~ FEES
Bank loans HTER 640907 650,124 558705 619,697 - - - -
Senior Note BrRE - - 917 555,708 - - 917 555,708
| 0024 . SO . LA
Total borrowings EEES 1,169,849 1,175,406 519,125 555,708
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE
as a percentage of total IhESAEN
borrowings BAl 44.43% % 100% %
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (5 &A#55) » AN EHETIR)

32  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

32 &R TH (%)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 2% (2007: 1%) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the group's profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB5,145,000 (2007: decrease/
increase by RMB155,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 2% (2007: 1%) increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
representative pattern of possible change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2007.

(c)

M= ()

(i) BURESIT
®2008412A31A8 -
EMEBEEMEEEFTE
ZERT WA R2MHE
E# T #2% (2007 4 ¢

1%) + Bl 28 & B /9 B 3 18
i M B AR B i ) gk > 1
n# A R #5,145,000 7T
(20074 : WA HEMAR
# 155,000 7T) °

R BURKE 5 T R R A

MmEE * Wit ARZBFE
WETAE MIENTAE S R T AAT
AZHFEREE o LFKT
F2% (20074 : 1%)REKE
B EHEA R MR AL R R

IZIARE ST o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k=5 Ar#550

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

 AARETINT)

32

il T H (8)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

All the group’s revenue-generating activities were transacted
in Renminbi. Exposure to foreign currency risks is mainly
attributable to bank deposits and Senior Note that are
denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. Foreign
currency risk is measured by employing sensitivity analysis,
taking into account current and anticipated exposures.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that had the United
States Dollars and Sterling Pounds exchange rates (versus
Renminbi) respectively increased by 5% (2007: 0.5%), with
all other variables remaining constant, the group’s profit after
tax for the year would have decreased by approximately
RMB29,222,000 (2007: RMB5,835,000) and nil (2007:
RMB8,438,000) respectively.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that had the United
States Dollars and Sterling Pounds exchange rates (versus
Renminbi) respectively decreased by 5% (2007: 0.5%), with
all other variables remaining constant, the group’s profit
after tax for the year would have increased by approximately
RMB29,222,000 (2007: RMB5,835,000) and nil respectively
(2007: RMB8,438,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to each of the group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at the date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. Results of
the analysis as presented above represent an aggregation
of the effects on each of the group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective foreign currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 383G A &

Annual Report 2008

—EEN\FEFER

(d)
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AEBEMBELRANEBIGAA
REETR S o FrEHHIMNE R
TERRTERARBERBUAR
BN B SHE - SMNE R ThER
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TEHEARY R B o

MR2008%F 128318 A H
thEERFTIEZIBFRT  mEE
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32  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

32 &mTH (4)

(e)

(f)

Concentration risk

The operation of the group significantly relied on a single third
party which was both the largest supplier of the group for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

Should the operation of the party be in doubt, the operation
of the group may be significantly affected. The group has
requested that party to arrange a guarantee for the sale
proceeds not yet repaid upon the sales of properties. The
group also assesses the financial position of the party closely
in order to mitigate the concentration risks exposed.

Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 December 2008 and
2007.

33 COMMITMENTS

(e)

(f)

33 AR¥E

kR

AEENEKRAEE LKBE—
WE=F  ZE=HAAEEHE
20084 12 A 31 B IEFEHRAHE
FERS ©

777 B BN EE - REBZE
BHRERIEATE - AEEE
ZORFZ T B SR e R (EE
B H & PSR HEHEAR o REBITR
ST AT B T AROR DA A AR
R R R

NRE
720084 % 20074128318 * Fr

FEeRMTAENSREANAERE
ERER -

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Authorised but not contracted for BREERETA
Contracted but not provided for BETAB R %R

(a)

R12A31 BEREFHRERAE
BHEAEEWNT
The group
rEE

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT
2,263,292 2,543,313
487,117 137,796
2,750,409 2,681,109
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33  ComMITMENTS (CONTD) 33 k¥ ()
(b) Commitments for operating leases (b) KEHERE
The group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties REBAKLETHE T LBV E MR
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial A ZERYZY—RAEERE
period of two to fifteen years, with an option to renew the E2+RF  RZBEATEEER
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. i & W BT B &SR Rl ST 1778 © AT
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. BHEHTEHAHE -
During the year, RMB10,082,000 (2007: RMB9,915,000) was FA EEANEERSEEYE
recognised in profit or loss as rental expenses in respect of MEe S A ARK10,082,0007T
sub-leased properties. (2007 4F : AR¥9,915,0007T) °
As at the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease REEBRBXRH @ REBETHERRD
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect KETRE  HEREEMELRE
of leased and sub-leased properties are payable as follows: AR REAEMNREZENT
The group
AEE
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARKETTT

Within 1 year —&FR 9,792 11,376
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR 28,063 25,876
After 5 years hF® 25,059 30,201
62,914 67,453
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SIGNIFICANT LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

34 HEHEMERH

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of investment
properties held under operating leases are described in note 17(c).

Apart from these leases, the group also sub-leases out a number
of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. All of
these leases have no contingent element.

During the year, RMB15,939,000 (2007: RMB15,347,000) was
recognised in profit or loss as rental income in respect of sub-leased
properties.

As at 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of sub-leased
properties are receivable as follows:

Within 1 year —FRA
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA
After 5 years hEE

REQEZHEMFNRENESLRNE
ZRELHFIBNMIFE17(c) °

BRzEREN  AEETREKEHEE
ERETYE - GLBHE—RRE—=
“+F RZARAEREMR  mER
PBEGFOAENRGE - FAEELEE

RAFERN EEZNEERLSER
WEHES WA R AR 15,939,000 7T
(20074 : AR¥15,347,0007T) ©

72008512 B31 8 » IRIBET AR EIA
EHE ERYETARERNRER
EIRBBRENT ¢

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARKETTT
9,883 14,570
9,850 22,993
5,897 21,458
25,630 59,021
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35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

35 BRARAM

Guarantees given to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the group’s properties (note (a))
Contingent liability in respect of a litigation

(note (b))

Notes:

(a)

The group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by purchasers of the group's properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the group is responsible to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed
by the defaulted purchasers to banks. The group is then entitled
to take over the legal title of the related properties. The group’s
guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends after the purchaser obtained the individual
property ownership certificate or up to a maximum of two years after
the full repayment of mortgage loan by the purchaser of the group’s

properties.

During the year, a claim has been made to a subsidiary of the group
in respect of a property construction cost of RMB21,020,000. The
intermediate people’s court of Zhangjiakou, Hebei Province, the PRC
has ruled in favour of the plaintiff on 25 November 2008. On 7 January
20009, the subsidiary has filed an appeal with the high people’s court of
Hebei Province to deny the liability.

The directors consider the claim is with no merit based on the legal
advice received. Accordingly, no provision has been made in respect
of this claim.

Hong Long Holdings Limited 385 AR A &
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[RIERTTE HEVHELR
RETAEEMEER
PiRIBEERE (5 ()

BRIFAREAEE (D)

=
=
&4

(a)

(b)

The group
M
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT
370,000 370,000
21,020 -

AEERETRITROMIZBREER
HER  ZFRBRESRASIEES
THEERMFILNRIBER - REE
REER - Mz EERERIZIBHE
AEEARRRRITEEERERNE
FOE R ERTEREN S RE R - MAEE
ERAEEEERNENEEMARE -
AEEMERBRBRBERE LAY
HEEt - R B RRSERFEFER IR
AEENEER N ZEIRBERKER
SMEFRER -

FR - AEE-FERERARDERSE
AR AR 21,020,000 TR H R 1A o
AR EATIE A SRR O R & A RJEFT R 2008
F11 825 BAREBF - 120094 1
A78  ZMBARERMILEZRA
RZRRE FREREBEE -

EFRAREAKEOEEEL - %9
RUFERKS - Bl LEAZRER
SRR -
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BHEANLMERRS
In addition to those material related party transactions disclosed BRIV EREE M T RENZES A
elsewhere in the financial statements, the group had the following AEANTR S NREBHEBEALTR
significant transactions and balances with related parties during the FAERR S RAEHIT
year:

(a) HEAKEEES  SREBAESRHE
HERHBREBNZ S K&

(a) Transactions and balances with the group’s directors,
senior management and their close family members

2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT

Interest expense (note (i) FLESE (B () = 226
(b) Transactions and balances with the group’s affiliated (b) EHEAEBNEBEARREZSEMH
companies and their directors R 5 Rtk
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®BFT

Prepayments (note (i) TR (B EE (i) 26,707 17,057
Trade payables (note (iii)) JFEASTRR R (B i) 8,724 8,724
Notes: BT

(i) Interest expense on loan from a non-executive director was (i) —(IIEMITE SRR ZERZF
charged at similar terms as other bank borrowings. The loan BXHNEEEMBITEESR
was fully repaid by the group in 2007. MUZIERL T e ZEEFRER

2007 FHAEEZEHEIAT -

(ii) Prepayments represented prepayments of construction (ii) ENZFARINTFEBALESE
materials paid to a related party for use of the group’s MRITER R - AR S E R R IE
development projects. The terms of such transactions were BZHRA - WER SR —MREE
carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary BRERAEBEEXEEHEA
course of the group’s businesses. AT o
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D) 36 B ANLHERRS ()
(b) Transactions and balances with the group’s affiliated (b) EXREEMNEBARANREEZEZ/EMN
companies and their directors (Cont’d) RB Rt ()
Notes: (Cont'd) FfaE : (&)
(i) Trade payables represented interest-free and unsecured (i) EABRRKREREMLEEALN
amount due to a related party for short-term purposes. This G B % 4K 3RS A ERIE o A
amount was repayable on demand and made on the same BAR=EXNELRMEE  WIRR
terms with other independent third parties. B H 38 37 55 = 77 9 FE RHERR
ET3L ©
37 NON-AD]USTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 37 3#%@%%%%& ,ﬁéf%% B ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'
On 11 March 2009, the group entered into a conditional sale and 200953 R11H » REFEE-—LHUE
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose of a =R A GREEERE  WREARE
18% equity interest in Huizhou Yintaida Company Limited (*“Huizhou 35,000,000 7T HH &R 2 AT B A A&
Yintaida”), a subsidiary of the company for RMB35,000,000. MIRFEBEEXAR AR ([FIMNRFE]D)
Huizhou Yintaida was engaged in the development of residential and B 18% i - M RFERFIMNIHE &
commercial properties in Boluo County, Huizhou. REFERIRAYFEERER -
38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38 Wi Jiek B & 2 ]

(a)

On 28 March 2008, the group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to acquire
100% equity interest in Shenzhen City Zirui Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Zirui"”).
Shenzhen Zirui was engaged in the development of
residential and commercial properties nearby Buji County,
Longgang District. The acquisition cost comprised of the
cash consideration RMB154,100,000 and the property
consideration of RMB80,915,000. The property consideration
represented the estimated cost of completion of 22,000
square metre of gross floor area of properties to be delivered
to the vendors upon completion of construction. Shenzhen
Zirui became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the group after the
completion of the share transfer.
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38 Wi B & A R (4

REE2008F12 A31HILFE - WE—
M B ARBMEANEERENT ¢

38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

The net assets acquired in the acquisition of a subsidiary during the
year ended 31 December 2008 were as follows:

Carrying
amount
before Fair value
consolidation adjustments Fair value
REfAIlREE  AAEREE ARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETET
Net assets acquired: EWEEEFE -
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 1,068 = 1,068
Inventories & 53,538 216,635 270,173
Trade and other receivables JE U B % e EL A R U R 110 = 110
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEY 411 - 411
Trade and other payables, and accruals JEfTBRTX « HA BN
TRIREA (36,747) = (36,747)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities AHREERAEFE 18,380 216,635 235,015
Total purchase prices paid, B EEERE -
satisfied in cash AR & 85,000
Less: cash of subsidiary acquired B ERBENBARES (411)
Net cash outflow in respect of the UM B AR
acquisition of a subsidiary BEmLFEE 84,589
Consideration payable at 72008412 A31H
31 December 2008 FERTEIRIE 150,015
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38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

38 Wi B A Rl ()

(b)  The net assets acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries (b) REZE2007F12A831BIEFE -
during the year ended 31 December 2007 were as follows: WEEM B A RIS FTEE AR E ERE
LUl
Carrying
amount
before Fair value
consolidation adjustments Fair value
REGRIREE - AAERE ARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETET
Net assets acquired: B s EEFE -
Property, plant and equipment 13 - [iE K& & 880 - 880
Inventories [5a s 195,797 68,468 264,265
Trade and other receivables JE SRR R % L A FELSGR 38,536 - 38,536
Pledged deposits HEHRTIF 481 - 481
Cash and cash equivalents BHeERREEED 2,513 - 2,513
Trade and other payables, and FERTBRIR « HAb AR
accruals BIRER (17,223) - (17,223)
Receipts in advance TEURBR K (198,152) - (198,152)
Taxation payable FESFRIA (300) - (300)
Net identifiable assets and ATHBIEE R
liabilities BERE 22,532 68,468 91,000
Total purchase prices paid, BEfEEERE
satisfied in cash AR & 91,000
Less: cash of
subsidiaries acquired A ERENBARERS (2,513)
Net cash outflow in respect of TUEKTB A RA
the acquisition of subsidiaries W& FEE 88,487
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39 IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 39 BEAFE ME A /A T
The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate holding EEZRAEAEENT ER QA RREE
company of the group to be Grand Prosperity Limited, which is BARAREBEZESFMAMLAH
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not Grand Prosperity Limited ° [t/ &3 £
produce financial statements available for public use. REEI S RRBEAREE -

40 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 40 EEHEEF A B

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

)

Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale

As explained in note 2(j), the group’s completed properties
held for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the group’s recent experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
in case for properties for future development and under
development for sale, and the costs to be incurred in selling
the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and
this may result in provision for completed properties held
for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale. Such provision requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and provision for
properties in the periods in which such estimate is changed
will be adjusted accordingly.

il 5t R H BT T RS FT RO AT Al - SEDAGB
ERRMEBARELSERD  BEAE
ZEBATAEREEHRENKREKE
o AR THERRNETERRMT :

(i) FHEHENCRIPERBHER
RBIEE K BB PR EE

ANPNRE 2()) FTARTE - AEERHED
ENERTYE  HHERRME
REBERFYETI AR ARE R TEE
FEMBEE AR - RIEBEAEER
RAERE EMYERNEE - AE
BERRENTISMAR  HEHE
B HHERKHAERERTYE
MR TR R EREMEAEL
FIRRA

i3 TRk AN P A0Sk 35 & (BB
BEEFRLD  IREREEFESS
WA EMRE RFEHENER
T - RAFRBEDERFHED
BRPMERIEERER - X EHBAT
VAFI B R T o fin T8 A B R 2R b T
BRAR - RNzERHRRESHA
B AR E R R E & R R
# o
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40 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT D)

40

wtAhEE S B (8D

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale (Cont’d)

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the balance sheet date. Any increase
or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in
future years.

Impairment losses on prepaid project costs

The group prepaid land and construction costs for certain
projects located on the lands which the group has not
obtained land use rights. The group is in the process of
obtaining these land use rights. Should the land use rights
cannot be obtained subsequently, certain prepaid costs may
not be recoverable. The group provides impairment losses for
the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation. The group’s
estimates may be inaccurate and any change in the estimates
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Provision for bad debts of loans and advances

The group reviews the recoverability and ageing of loans and
advances and provides impairment losses if the balances are
not fully recoverable. The assessments involve estimation on
the recoverability of these balances. The group’s estimates
may be inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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40 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

40 &

" AA RIS

it A BB (280)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Land Appreciation Tax

As explained on note 9(a), Land Appreciation Tax is levied on
properties developed by the group for sale, at progressive
rate ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated
based on the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing cost and all property development expenditures.
Given that the uncertainties of the calculation basis of Land
Appreciation Tax adopted by local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than estimated at the
balance sheet date. Any increase or decrease in estimates
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well-established
valuation techniques using current market parameters are
theoretical values applicable at a given reporting date, and
hence can only be used as an indicator of value realisable
in a future sale. These techniques involve uncertainties
and are significantly affected by the assumptions used and
judgements made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discounted rates, estimates of future
cash flows, future expected loss and other factors. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and
the resulting fair values. Derived fair value estimates cannot
necessarily be substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and, in many cases, could not be realised in an
immediate sale of the instruments.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 17, investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on
a method of valuation which involves, inter alia, certain
estimates including current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, appropriate discount rates
and expected future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

T I ET

MNP FES(a) PTAT AL - AR EEHE
FiT B8 R H ¥ 3£ 7R 42 1+ b (B (B HE 18 LA
30% % 60% HY B K HAN + 33
B RIEAEMRM - LHIRER
TH1Z & W) 25 P A5 SR IEDR AT #0753 B
X (BELERENESE B8]
AR A MEBRAX) HE - &
R BT [ FT AR AN B 3 1R (B 7
STEEENTARREE - BRA

AREgmRRERNEEERERA
FfbaTEOAE R - fBET A EFIE sk
Mo aRBERRFENERS

TEERMTIA

BEEBEZNGEE T ARAER
MHE2HETENRARBERBERANE
—REAMMNEREE - AitEn
FRAEB#% L SR SR EERNIE
T? RERESRTABRAER - &
REFTERARE AEEEeHIE
E’\Jﬂfgxﬁﬂﬁf'ﬁﬁﬂwﬂﬁﬁ CHTERE .
HETARRBEERE - RRBHERE
Zé%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ.%ﬂ']”ﬁ“?ﬁa &
Eﬁjﬁcg“%%?%%ﬁ&/ﬁ%lﬁtﬁ
Z\fﬂﬁ FriEE /R EAF
T TE RE S0 1 B T T IS ELL R
MESEE  MERZERLT @ &
EEMETRERBZETAERZTHEN
BIMARE -

REMENGE

MM TP - AR E Y BB
ST EEGEMNEBHS BN FE

AIBEMER AR PTETTHGE
BAREIIR -

HERREY RS THE P
& B Al ™% E TR E RAK AR R
MEBEYMERS  @EFNERE
HARRTSHSHEERZEER
A RNEBEERSE  EEE
B BT (5 s E 5 VA ] R B
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41

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

UANEETTITR)

41

£ A A {H Y 8k E 20084 12 H
31 H 1k 4 B i AR 2R BB T
v BI) R R ) A R R

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2008 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the company’s results of operations and
financial position.

In addition, the following developments are expected to result
in amended disclosures in the financial statements, including
restatement of comparative amounts in the first period of adoption:

HKFRS 8, Operating segments
BRI EERNE S (4 E 55

HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements

SRS 1 5% (2007 FLAER] ) [ BB EZ 25 ]
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
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1 January 2009

20091 A1H

1 January 2009
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